# **HUDSON, NEW HAMPSHIRE BOARD OF SELECTMEN**

# Minutes of the May 14, 2024 Meeting

- 1. <u>CALL TO ORDER</u> by Chairman Guessferd the meeting of May 14, 2024 at 7:05 p.m. in the Selectmen Meeting Room at Town Hall.
- 2. <u>PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE</u> School Board Liaison, Grace Kennedy.
- 3. ATTENDANCE

<u>Board of Selectmen</u>: Selectman Dumont arrived at 7:09 p.m., Bob Guessferd, Dave Morin, Heidi Jakoby, Kara Roy

<u>Staff/Others</u>: Tad Dionne, Police Chief; Police Captain, David Cayot; Scott Tice, Fire Chief; Jay Twardosky, Public Works Director; Elvis Dhima, Town Engineer; Town Administrator Steve Malizia; Grace Kennedy, School Board Representative; Craig Putnam, Sustainability Committee; Debbie Putnam, Sustainability Committee

- 4. PUBLIC INPUT None
- 5. RECOGNITION, NOMINATIONS & APPOINTMENTS
  - A. Appointments
    - 1) Cable Utility Committee Mike O'Keefe

<u>Selectman Morin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Roy to appoint Mike O'Keefe to the Cable Utility</u> <u>Committee with a term to expire April 2027. Carried 4-0.</u>

- 2) Municipal Utility Committee David Leary

  <u>Selectman Roy made a motion, seconded by Selectman Morin to appoint David Leary to the Municipal Utility</u>

  <u>Committee with a term to expire April 2027. Carried 4-0.</u>
- 3) Sustainability Committee Edward Thompson

  <u>Selectman Roy made a motion, seconded by Selectman Morin to appoint Edward Thompson to the Sustainability</u>

  <u>Committee with a term to expire April 2027. Carried 4-0.</u>
- 4) Sustainability Committee Karl Huber Selectman Morin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Roy to appoint Karl Huber to the Sustainability Committee with a term to expire April 2027. Carried 5-0.
- 5) Benson Park Committee Gary Williams

  <u>Selectman Dumont made a motion, seconded by Selectman Jakoby to appoint Gary Williams to the Benson</u>

  <u>Park Committee with a term to expire April 2027. Carried 5-0.</u>
- 6) Conservation Commission Mike Catanzaro

  <u>Selectman Morin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Dumont to appoint Mike Catanzaro as an alternate to the Conservation Commission with a term to expire December 2025. Carried 5-0.</u>
- B. Nominations
  - 1) Sustainability Committee (4 member vacancies expiring (1) April 2025 and (3) April 2027; (1) alternate vacancy to expire April 2025)

Alyssa Hanley

Chairman Guessferd recognizes Sustainability Committee Chairman, Debbie Putnam, who is speaking on behalf of Alyssa Hanley. Debbie Putnam said, that she did speak with Alyssa, and noted that she is a lifelong member of Hudson and her chosen profession is a registered nurse. That is an extremely demanding

profession and she basically has to work when the hospitals, etc. want her to work. Tonight she is starting at 7pm at night and I don't know how long her shift is, it could be 12 hours. So, when I spoke with her she initially applied to be a member. And I said, well do you have any idea as to the regularity of your work schedule? She said, no, I have to work when I'm called into work. She does know a couple of days in advance, but that's about it. So, what I'm asking for is basically some flexibility here. She saw our road-side signs, then as she indicated in her application she's been active in our Facebook page and she studied the pages and the Hudson Sustainability on the Town website. When we chatted she expressed her sincere interest in contributing to the Sustainability Committee. But, I'm asking the Board of Selectmen to honor her profession. Thank you. Selectman Morin asked if it would be better for us to make it the alternate position seat to April 2025, is that what you're looking for. Mrs. Putnam: Definitely an alternate and yes let's go with 2025 and we'll see how it works and whether it fits into her schedule. She is very sincere and I'd like to recognize that sincerity and give her a chance. Chairman Guessferd asked if there was anything else, any questions from the Board. So what we'll do typically we'll vote next time at the next meeting. And, please extend our thanks for her applying and we will decide at the next meeting.

2) NRPC – (2 member vacancies with terms expiring 4 years from appointment)

Ed Van der Veen

Chairman Guessferd recognizes Ed Van der Veen. Ed Van der Veen, 9 Newton Street, Hudson, NH. I'm applying for NRPC Commissioner. I've lived in Hudson since 2005, I've served on the Planning Board for several years. Once as a vice-chairman and currently as a secretary. I've sat on some pretty big regional projects and I know what the impacts can be. I was also involved with the creation of the new Master Plan that is almost finished, all the way back to the focus group stage so I'm familiar with what the citizens are looking for. I've been to two annual NRPC forums so I'm familiar with the information that they bring to our community. I also feel I have a good relationship with the NRPC staff through being on the Planning Board and other activities. I am also very well aware of the current challenges our region faces, such as traffic, housing, water quality and other things. The NRPCs purpose is to coordinate planning and development in the region, to serve its member jurisdictions through programs with technical planning assistance and represent the region in issues of state and federal significance. The NRPC is also an affiliate state data center and I feel that with my experience in the Town, I'm well suited to serve as a conduit of information between NRPC and Town and I would appreciate your vote. Chairman Guessferd asked if the Board had any questions. Seeing none, he thanked Mr. Van der Veen for coming and that the Board will vote next time. Mr. Van der Veen thanked the Board.

3) NRPC – 2 member vacancies with terms expiring 4 years from appointment)

Timothy Lyko

Chairman Guessferd recognizes Timothy Lyko. Mr. Lyko: I'm Timothy Lyko from 8 Daniel Webster Drive. I've lived in Hudson for probably more than half my life now and I graduated from Alvirne. I currently serve on the Planning Board and the ZORC Committee so I figured I may as well go for the trifecta and become the regional commissioner. I think it would be fun and exciting because I was just at the annual meeting they had and I liked what they offered and I liked how the all towns came together and there was a lot of good discussion. I liked that part, learning from the other towns and the other experiences, working together and bringing that back to Hudson and trying, like you said, making the whole region better because every town has to work together. So, I'd like to represent Hudson in that if you guys don't mind. Chairman Guessferd asked if the Board had any questions. He noted that they served together on the Planning Board and also attended the annual forum with Mr. Lyko and thought he would be a good representative for Hudson. He thanked Mr. Lyko and that the Board will vote next week. Mr. Lyko thanked the Chairman.

# 6. <u>CONSENT ITEMS</u>

Chairman Guessferd asked if any board member wished to remove any item for separate consideration. <u>Selectman Morin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Dumont, to accept Consent Items 6A – F. Carried 5-0.</u>

# A. Assessing Items:

- 1) Elderly Exemptions: 39 Westchester Ct. map 147/ lot 022/ sub 033; 107 Central St. map 183/ lot 089
- 2) Disabled Exemption Application: 160 Dracut Rd. map 253/lot 074
- 3) Current Use Lien Release: 4 A&B Acadia Dr. map 115/ lot 002/ sub 002
- B. Water/Sewer Items: None

### C. Licenses & Permits & Policies:

- 1) Night Trucking Permit Brox Industries
- 2) Pole License One (1) new pole on Webster Street
- 3) Raffle Permit Dalton Shumsky Foundation
- 4) Raffle Permit Friends of Benson Park

## D. Acceptance of Minutes

- 1) April 23, 2024
- E. Donations: None

### F. Calendar:

05/14	7:00	Board of Selectmen	BOS Meeting Room
05/15	7:00	HEAC	Rodgers Library
05/15	7:00	Planning Board	<b>Buxton Meeting Room</b>
05/16	7:00	Benson Park Comm.	<b>HCTV</b> Meeting Room
05/20	6:00	Planning Board -	<b>Buxton Meeting Room</b>
		Minor Site Plan Review	
05/21	7:00	Municipal Utility Comm.	<b>BOS Meeting Room</b>
05/21	7:00	Sustainability – Cancelled	<b>Buxton Meeting Room</b>
05/22	6:00	Library Trustees	Hills Memorial Library
05/23	7:00	Zoning Board	<b>Buxton Meeting Room</b>
05/27	-	Memorial Day	Town Hall Closed
05/28	7:00	Board of Selectmen	<b>BOS Meeting Room</b>

Chairman Guessferd opened discussion. Selectman Jakoby: I just want to note I will submit any typos that are found, regular typos on the minutes. I just wanted to point out that Brox Industries is being granted a permit for some afterhours trucking. And just for that neighborhood, if you live near Brox that the Town will be notified of when that's happening. So I just wanted to pull that out for the public. Because I don't know how the public is informed. Town Administrator said that Brox will inform them. Selectman Jakoby: So I just wanted to let the public know that we've approved a permit for them to do some afterhours trucking. Minimal it was just eight trucks, eight vehicles. Thank you.

# 7. OLD BUSINESS

- A. Votes taken after Nonpublic Session on April 23, 2024
  - 1) Selectman Morin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Roy to hire Annemarie Grossi with a starting salary of \$22.42 (Step 1) per hour, all in accordance with the Hudson Police Employee Association Contract as recommended by the Police Chief. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.
  - 2) Selectman Morin made a motion to adjourn at 8:16 p.m. This was seconded by Selectman Roy. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.

## 8. <u>NEW BUSINESS</u>

A. IAFF Local 3154 MDA Boot Drive

Chairman Guessferd recognizes Town Administrator, Steve Malizia who said he recognizes Fire Lieutenant, Kyle Levesque who is the IAFF member who submitted the request to the Board and if there were any questions. He continued to say that this is something they do on an annual basis so they followed all the typical safety protocols. These are the weekends and they're asking your permission to be out at those intersections on those dates. Mr. Malizia asked Lieutenant Levesque if there was anything he wanted to add. Lieutenant Levesque: No, you summed it up pretty good. We've been doing this for a number of years, so as a courtesy we'd like to come to the Board of Selectmen and let them know that these are the dates that we'll be out there and we'll be doing this. So, that way if there's any concerned citizens that come to you with questions or concerns that you guys have been informed of what is that we're doing out there. And, for me to come here and answer any questions that any of you might have. Chairman Guessferd asked if anyone had any questions. It's something they do every year. Selectman Dumont: No question but I'm ready to make a motion if everybody's all set. Selectman Dumont made a motion, seconded by Selectman Jakoby to approve the Professional Firefighters of Hudson, Local 3154 request to conduct MDA Boot Drives on Friday, May 17, 2024, Saturday, June 15, 2024, Friday, July 26, 2024, Friday August 23, 2024 and Saturday, August 24, 2024 at the intersections of Ferry Street, Derry Street, Chase Street and Library Street. Carried 5-0.

# B. Town Wide Paving Contract

Chairman Guessferd recognized Public Works Director, Jay Twardosky, who said, good evening. So the Town Wide Paving Contract with Brox Industries. Brox has sent us a letter to offer to roll the contract over with a couple increases on the line items that are listed on the memo. I've done extensive research on what bids have been going for this year and this is substantially lower than what a number of the bids are going for. I'm here to recommend we take it as a two year contract. So they're spacing out any increases over two years. If we went out to bid, I firmly believe this year would be more than the two year contract put together. I believe it's in our best interest to take this. Questions? Selectman Roy: Did you actually put it out for bid? Jay Twardosky: We haven't, we received the letter for Brox Industries rolling over existing contract, so we have not put it out to bid yet. That's if you choose not to roll this over that would be the second motion. Selectman Roy: The reason I ask, in the package there was nothing that indicated why you didn't go out for bid. There's a work sheet that's supposed to be completed if you don't use the bidding process. That's not part of this packet. Jay Twardosky: I didn't realize we needed to do that when just rolling over an existing contract. Chairman Guessferd: I'll just add on a little bit. We do a fair amount of no bids, no bidding contracts, and the idea behind the form was really just too kind of document it. Not so much that to question per se, but to document the fact that we're not going out to bid for the next two years. So they actually initiated this two year extension, correct? When does their contract end, right now? Jay Twardosky: The fiscal year. Chairman Guessferd: Ok, they came to us first but, I mean in a normal situation we would go out for bids, but that form, and this is kind of the message we've been trying to get across for the last year or two is, when you get the bid form put it in the packet so we can look at it and see. Your explanation in here was really good, looked like you did a thorough job of your analysis. And I don't doubt your expertise in all the research that you did but we just need to document these things because somebody comes and audits and looks at it say why did you do this? We have a standard procedure we can fall on and say here it is, here's the rational. So, I would just say go ahead and add that to the file. Make sure it's in there. In the future just fill it out and put it in the packet when you give Mr. Malizia the agenda item. We'll have a chance to look at it ahead of time we won't need to be having these discussions at this point. So, it's letting the taxpayer know they're getting a good deal. And also an auditor who comes in and to say OK they followed their procedures and they did consider all factors. Selectman Dumont: I agree there is a form but I will say the information that Mr. Twardosky has provided in here far exceeds what that form requires. So for me I would prefer to see a more in depth response. Maybe you attach the form and you fill in the blanks on it, but I do appreciate this. There's other towns that are taking into consideration there's other prices. Had we simply gotten that form I don't think we would have gotten all this information. So I think he went above and beyond, in my opinion. I do want that to be noted. It's in my opinion looking through all these and the other prices and comparing what I've seen out there that I think the two year roll over is favorable to the Town when you break up how that price increase is going to happen. The majority of the other companies hit you all in that first year which would eat up the total increase that we got approved by the voters this past year. By breaking it off within the first year we actually almost double what we're getting, bang for buck wise because we're not getting hit over the head. So for me, I think this is a job well done. Selectman Jakoby: I just have a more of a general question concerning this. If Brox is contracted through the end of the year, correct? What is the detriment to going out to bid, wouldn't we still have Brox as a bidder? So, I'm just trying to understand the process. Yes, I agree that the information we have here is exceptional and almost like a bidding process because you did the research yourself. So, I'm just trying to distinguish not going to bid v. going to bid and what's the hardship of going to bid. That was my question. Jay Twardosky: Because it's a competitive bid, all the companies know approximately what the other companies are bidding. It's kind of a price war but at the same time there's certain price points they follow. So you have a better chance of paying more money than you would with the rollover. So, going out to bid, our contract, our existing contract it's considered an all-inclusive. Like you'll notice in some of the comps I've put in here, everything is spelled out per item. Ours is all-inclusive. When we say \$83.95 a ton, or \$86 bucks a ton, that includes, I mean that's everything. That's putting a tackifier down, that's trimming all the joints. That's hand-work that's normally \$50-60 a ton more. Everything is included, it's just the one lump price. Same thing with cold plaining it's a type of contract not too many companies bid on anymore because they want to see all the little line items. Once you specify this is included, that's included, the price just goes up from there. So I know when you're not involved with it, it can be tough to understand. Selectman Jakoby: More of my question is, if Brox puts in this bid and we ask for all-inclusive bid, and we don't get any additional bids, we'd be going with Brox. Jay Twardosky: But at a possibly higher rate. Because now they're putting in more leg work. Selectman Jakoby: To put in the bid? Jay Twardosky: Correct. Selectman Jakoby: So that's the detrimental part. It costs them more to put in a bid than for them to roll over a contract. Selectman Morin: And it costs us, may be small, but it does cost us in time. There is some money involved. Jay Twardosky: Right we have to advertise. Selectman Jakoby: So there's some expenses that we incur by going out to bid. So, given the information that you've put here which is a comparative analysis as Selectman Dumont said, we're getting a good idea that rolling over this contract is a better option that going out to bid because it's less expensive in the short run for us to do that. Would that be correct? Chairman Guessferd: I have a question as well. On that same line of thinking, is there a risk, I'm kind of speculating a little bit, is there a risk that if we did go out for bid, that Brox would come in with a higher bid? Jay Twardosky: Absolutely, they would. Chairman Guessferd: So that's kind of the increase, a big part. And that's probably a larger increase in my mind than the cost we would incur. Because, if I'm them, I'm going OK it's all wide open now. And the industry prices are much higher so we'll bid the industry price. Jay Twardosky: When the companies are bidding their main objective is to be one dollar lower than the next company. They're not trying to be hundreds of thousands of dollars lower because that's leaving money on the table. So they're all trying be close to each other. And, because they do so many bids they pretty much know what each company is going to come in with numbers. It's a little game between them to try and stay a little bit lower and it doesn't help us in this case. It's one of the times I think a competitive bid is actually going to hurt more than help. Selectman Jakoby: Thank you. I have one other question. Just for future, for this Board to consider. Are there preferred vendors or situations where competitive bidding, where going out to bid is not recommended and might there be some guide lines for that? And I just put that out there because this to me is pretty obvious that it makes sense to roll over a current contract that we approve of the company, the company has served us well. And that was true for a number of other engineering things as well. So it's just a curiosity for me. Selectman Dumont: For me it's case by case. I don't know but if you could kind of put a blanket on it, but I think kind of what you said. You kind of have to look at it and say OK here's what we have for a contract, here's what we're getting, do the comparative analysis. So I think it's important that each department bring that forward to us that way. So that way we're not just putting a blanket across and saying, oh if it's somebody we've dealt with before we don't have to worry about it. Selectman Roy: There are places that we deal with. Particularly when we do vehicle purchases. We go to the (inaudible) whatever, we continually go back there instead of putting out for bid every time we want to buy a vehicle. So having a policy that states we have preferred vendors for that, might not be a bad idea. Selectman Dumont: Yes as long as we're not waiving just saying if it's a preferred vendor it gets waived. Yes. That's fine. Selectman Jakoby: And thank you for that term. The term preferred vendor is kind of where I was going. Because that would be helpful for any new member of the Board to know that Brox is a preferred vendor and when I look at this I have a different way of filtering that information. Selectman Dumont: I was looking at it a different way. That's a good idea. Selectman Jakoby: And definitely come before the Board. Absolutely. But thank you for that. Just clarification. Chairman Guessferd asked if there were any more discussion points. Does anybody want to make a motion? Selectman Morin made the motion, seconded by Selectman Dumont to accept Brox's offer to extend the existing contract with these increases for two (2) additional years. Motion carried 5-0. Selectman Morin made the motion, seconded by Selectman Dumont to waive the bid process for the Town Wide Paving Contract. Motion carried 5-0.

Selectman Dumont wished to be noted the reason why the Board waived the bidding process is due to the extensive research that Mr. Twardosky had done on the subject.

Chairman Guessferd recognizes Town Engineer, Elvis Dhima and Public Works Director, Jay Twardosky. Mr. Dhima: Thank you Mr. Chairman, good evening everyone. We'll be presenting the next case for you tonight. As you know Public Works every year provides capital improvement projects regarding our sewer utility which we own and operate. This particular year we have identified Blackstone Street, it's in need of repair of about 1100 linear feet and 12 services. As you might recall last year we went out to bid and we picked three vendors for services as such based on their rates and different services they provided for this particular application which is going to be UV liner. The National Water Main Cleaning contract, which is one of the three, provides basically the services for this particular application. So we're presenting this case to you and recommending to you tonight to hire basically the most cost effective contract that we have for these services. We don't have the funds to complete the entire job this year but we're hoping to do the main 5 out of 12 services and do the rest of them after July. Which we'll bid out if it's over \$50,000 and present that to the Board again. With that said we'll take any questions you might have. Selectman Dumont: Those services, they'll be cutting them in? Elvis Dhima: They'll be cutting them in, they'll be driving a liner within the services as well. Selectman Dumont: They'll line the whole pipe and they'll go back and they'll cut back in the service, or they'll actually line the service as well? Elvis Dhima: That is correct. All the way down to the cleaning or beyond the property line, yes. Correct. Jay Twardosky: It's all Bermaco pipe. All the services, even going out to the main it's all Bermaco. So they do the whole thing from inside the main so there's no digging, no going in anybody's house it's a pretty amazing process. Selectman Dumont: Yes, I did a similar one on the other side of Hudson and it worked out great. That stuff flows now. Elvis Dhima: We don't have to open up the road, we don't have to deal with the traffic situation. It's just painless compared to what it could be. Jay Twardosky: There's quite a few areas of asbestos that we would probably get involved in if we had to dig it. This becomes the most cost effective way of doing it. Elvis Dhima: Not that Hudson has any asbestos that we know of, only Nashua. And they say they don't have any. Capital of asbestos, right? Anyways, we'll take any questions you might have. Chairman Guessferd asked if anyone had any more questions. Selectman Jakoby: I just want to reiterate, so everything went to bid and those contractors were all selected through bidding process and today it's just to allocate the funds necessary for the work to be done. Correct? Elvis Dhima: Picking the cheapest contractor for this particular application, correct. You're absolutely right. Selectman Jakoby: Thank you. Selectman Dumont made a motion, seconded by Selectman Jakoby to award the sewer rehabilitation project to the most cost effective contractor. National Water Main Cleaning Co., for the amount of, not to exceed \$126,848, using the Sewer Capital Project Account #5564-640. Motion carried: 5-0.

## D. South Water Tank, Verizon Lease

Chairman Guessferd recognized Town Engineer, Elvis Dhima who thanked the Chairman. Continuing he said, as you recall as always we're looking for ways to find revenue. This particular case has to deal with utilizing one of the assets on the south end to house Verizon equipment. We're looking at a 25 year lease for the amount of \$9,022.00. This needed voters' approval which happened in March of 2024. We've been working out the details of this contract between March and now and it's in front of you tonight. The attorneys, all 1,000 of them, that were involved with this have approved it, including ours. It's ready for prime time and ready for your final approval. I'm asking you to authorize the Town Administrator to sign the lease and the necessary easements for this work. I'll take any questions you might have. Selectman Roy: Did you say easements? Elvis Dhima: Yes, there is an easement for us, there's and easement for Verizon. Selectman Roy: OK, it's not in the motion. Elvis Dhima: It says to authorize the Town Administrator to sign the amendment to the existing easement. Selectman Roy: Oh, OK. It's the second motion. Elvis Dhima: I wanted to make sure you guys could pick which one you wanted to go first, that's what it was. No it's my fault, my bad. Good catch. Chairman Guessferd asked if there were any other comments. Selectman Morin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Dumont to approve the lease agreement and authorize the Town Administrator to sign the amendment to the existing easement. Motion carried 5-0.

## E. Design & Construction Storm Water Best Management Practices Project

Chairman Guessferd recognized Town Engineer, Elvis Dhima who began by thanking the Chairman and continuing to say, as you recall the Town of Hudson received approximately \$2.6 million in ARPA funds during COVID, American Rescue Plan. We utilized most of those funds if not all of it for construction and capital improvements projects throughout the Town including the Transfer Station, the fuel station at the Public Works, the Flagstone drainage pipe repairs and things of that sort. The funds were basically allocated by a committee that was

set up from different members in the community. Including the Budget Committee and it had final approval by the Board of Selectmen. Out of all these projects the only one that we have not dedicated yet is the \$20,000 related to design and construction storm. This is the only one that we have in works so we have not utilized yet. In addition to that because we've done most of our projects already on the list. There's approximately \$21,000 available for us to utilize for other things that we might need. So what's in front of you tonight is a recommendation to take the surplus funds, roll it into this existing basically, assigned project and give this project a name which is going to be Adams Drive Culvert that you were recently made aware of that's in need of repair. Right now the Adams Drive Culvert is out for engineering services and also construction services. We're running two RFPs at the same time to make sure that we understand what makes the most sense. We're hoping that this is something in the \$150,000 range maximum instead of half a million which we were shooting for. So the idea is to take \$100,000 that's going to become available from the Capital Reserve Funds for drainage that the taxpayers voted for in March. Roll the \$40,000 into it and then steal \$10,000 from Jay's budget after July 1st and put that project behind us and hopefully it's at the \$150,000 range. That will take care of that project, it's going to wipe us out from what we have in the books as far as drainage goes, but that's something we cannot put off too much longer. That site has been stabilized but it's still in need of repair. I'll take any questions you might have. Selectman Roy: So when we originally got the ARPA money there was a committee formed. Did this go before the committee? Elvis Dhima: Yes it did. And it was assigned \$20,000 from the committee for this. So what we're doing is we're keeping the name of this particular project the same, but we did not have a location. So what we're doing is we're keeping the intent of that the same but now we're giving a name to the project which is going to be Adams Drive culvert. And we're also asking you to increase that from \$20,000 to \$40,000 based on a surplus on the budget of \$21,000. There's still going to be \$900 left there in case anyone wants to get anything done, for paper or whatever else we need around here, pencils. Selectman Roy: I would recommend using it then. If you can do it that way, use it all. Chairman Guessferd: So it was a little confusing, the numbers, I was just trying to, as you explained it, I think I'm there. Because it said there was \$40,000 ARPA funds remaining, and then it showed a balance of \$29,034.32 so I was just a little bit confused. Elvis Dhima: It's over \$40,000 but we always like to have a little bit of money left in case the small numbers change. So we feel like we're in a good place with the Finance Director, with the numbers. But we always like to have a little bit of extra there just in case there's a (inaudible) \$5 or \$10 dollars there. So that's why you're only getting asked to roll the \$20,000, leave the rest in there. Chairman Guessferd: OK, that makes sense. Selectman Dumont: So the budget you're asking to increase is not for the entire project, it's for what we already approved which is looking for engineering services? Elvis Dhima: It was for, right now we've got two things going on. Engineering services construction. What I'm asking to do is not utilize it for engineering construction, but utilize it for the project itself which is Adams Drive. What we end up deciding to do it's going to be about in a couple of weeks I'll becoming before the Board of Selectmen very soon and basically with a recommendation to either we do engineering or we do a repair in place. If we do a replacement in place in kind, or a repair in place in kind, then we might not need engineering. We're going to just line it like we did with the sewer. If now it turns into we need a whole engineering thing because we can't do the lining, we have to make, we'll make the decision then, but, I'm running both of them hoping we're not wasting time. Either one or the other we should be able to make a decision in a couple of weeks which way we're going to go. Selectman Dumont: And then the follow-up to that, so you said you asked me about \$150,000 and if we're figuring about \$40,000 to those services we just talked about roughly or hopefully a little less, are you feeling confident in what you're seeing we'll be able to get the job accomplished if that other \$100-\$110,000? Elvis Dhima: Yes, so \$100,000 is coming from the Capital Reserve Funds it comes on July 1st, \$40,000, if you guys will forward this will be rolled into it so that makes it \$140,000 and then I'm just saying \$150,000 as a number. \$10,000 will come out of Jay's drainage, you know from the DPW. That makes it \$150,000 that we need to get this thing done. That's what I'm envisioning. We don't have to go out and ask the taxpayers for more funds. What we have in place should take care of this. Selectman Dumont: Ok, that's what I was asking. Selectman Morin: And it's got to be understood that we had this discussion last year during budget season. Our drainage is way behind and unfortunately this is an emergency case which is going to cut into what we were hoping to fix this year. So, it's part of business unfortunately. Elvis Dhima: It is. This thing just landed on us and this was one of the cases that we were trying to make to the taxpayers as we're making the case for the Capital Reserve Funds for drainage. And I know \$100,000 probably wasn't a lot but it's not a little, but you've got to start somewhere and we felt like \$100,000 was a good start. But, I just want to make everyone aware, we don't even have access to it already. But we already have the need for it. It's going to be something that's going to be rolling in every year and it's going to be needed. And it might be increased through the years. It's just something we have to deal with. It's the only one we really haven't paid attention to and it's probably going to need our attention moving forward for the next 3 to 5 years. Chairman Guessferd asked if there were any other comments. Selectman Dumont made a motion, seconded by Selectman Roy to approve and increase the budget of ARPA project 7210 to \$40,000, related to Adam Drive repair, as recommended by the Town Engineer and Finance Director. Motion carried 5-0.

Selectman Jakoby: I just want to clarify for people. So that \$40,000 is from our ARPA grant so it is not from another Town line or taxpayers. I know I will get that question. Thank you.

#### F. Request for Expenditure of Donation Funds

Chairman Guessferd recognized Town Engineer, Elvis Dhima. Elvis Dhima: Thank you Mr. Chairman. This next one is related to a donation account that we have at the Land Use that could be utilized for anything related to the Land Use division. Two printers were purchased recently for the admin's, color printers, a stationary one for their particular stations. I'm in front of you tonight to ask for two things tonight. The first one is to basically replenish the account that used to move the donation. Funds in the other one to set aside \$5,000 for the Land Use IT division. Basically build the capabilities, start backing up everything that we have in place. IT department has some kind of backup capabilities but, they're not where they need to be. What we're trying to do is mimic what we did with backups for our emails. I tried to do the same thing for our servers 100%. There's a lot going on obviously with engineering and planning, we're trying to do that. They don't have the budget, IT department, so we basically feel that this is probably good use to start increasing our capabilities from storage/backup. I'm asking the Board to consider that tonight. It will help us obviously achieving this because the IT department doesn't have the funds necessary for this. But the idea is to do the same thing we did with emails. Start backing up everything so we never have to worry about losing anything. And that's it. I'll take any questions you might have. Selectman Jakoby: So I'm just going to be clarifying. The Land Use donations total the \$11,510.21. And you're asking to split those donations into these two projects. Elvis Dhima: Not split them up, use most of it. So, use \$5,019.96 out of the \$11,000 for the printers. And then take an additional \$5,000 out of the \$11,000 for basically IT division pocket of the Land Use. And that still leaves about \$1,600 available for anything that we might need. Paper, pencils things of that sort. Selectman Jakoby: And what is that donation? Is that what the donation money is generally used for? Elvis Dhima: Yes. That's basically the use for it. It was established prior to my time in here but it's basically not any different than PD and Fire are getting basically donations through. It gets accumulated through the years it hasn't been utilized. I was made aware of it and decided to utilize it. It's been something in the works so here I am spending most of it. Selectman Jakoby: That's wonderful, I think it's great to utilize those donations and such in a very powerful way to ensure that your department has what it needs. Elvis Dhima: I wanted to get a couch but I felt like it probably wasn't going to fly. Selectman Jakoby: I just wanted to clarify that, thank you so much. Chairman Guessferd asked if there was any more discussion and noted we have two motions. Selectman Morin read the motion. Motion #1: Selectman Morin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Dumont to approve the transfer of \$5,019.96 of funds from Account # 4559 (Hudson Economic Development), to Account #4191-5571-303 (Planning Office Supplies), not to exceed \$5,019.96. Motion carried 5-0. Motion #2: Selectman Jakoby made a motion, seconded by Selectman Morin to approve the transfer of \$5,000 of funds from Account # 4559 (Hudson Economic Development), to Account # 5570-572-411 (Land Use – IT computer Equipment), no to exceed \$5,000. Motion carried 5-0.

## G. Memorandum of Understanding Between Town of Hudson and Pennichuck Water

Chairman Guessferd recognized Town Engineer, Elvis Dhima who said thank you Mr. Chairman. So as you all know the entire area here has been impacted by the forever chemicals. You also know that we've been engaging Saint Gobain for the past 2 1/2 years. And we're dealing with that. In addition, you also know we've been working with Pennichuck and the state of New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services in parallel with what we're doing with Saint Gobain about looking at long term solutions and how we're going to deal with this issue. Not just for Hudson but for the regional standpoint. I'm pleased to tell you tonight that Pennichuck, us and NHDES has come to an agreement to get access to about \$500,000 to \$600,000 in grants with no match required by us to do a study of the river to what the next crossing would look like. Either on the Hudson side or the Litchfield side. The water would be coming out of Pennichuck Water Works and it's going to be basically handled to what we need. Now and in the future and also anyone adjacent to us. The pot of money that's been utilized is from the same pot of money that we, as the Town of Hudson, are using right now, \$126,000 or \$128,000 for regional assessment of the entire area to what things will look like if we get the water and push it out. We'll be working with Pennichuck on this one and the state of NH, Pennichuck has agreed to spearhead this effort and they'll be paying for this upfront and get reimbursement from the State. So, it does not impact us in any way, any financial way. But, we're going to be beneficiary to it and we're going to be one of the two parties making the decisions related to this particular crossing.

This is a very good first step, it basically gets us to the design phase and the permitting and anything that goes with it and all those necessary easements for this particular work. We are working to figure out which way we need to go. We have other things we are pursuing as well. As I said with Saint Gobain and those are going to be available for you to discuss very soon during non-public. At some point we have to make a decision but, we're pursuing different avenues to make sure that we're all set now and in the future. Water is going to be obviously something that someone needs to pays attention to. There's new rules rolling in, there's time lines we need to meet, it's a serious issue and we're just being proactive and just trying to work with everyone that's involved with this. Not just as Hudson but on a regional level. This is a very good thing and for us to make sure we're on the same page we need a memorandum of understanding to who is going to do what and where we fall into this. This is in line to the agreement we have with the City of Nashua when we work on the twin bridges as well. It's something that's in writing that we all agree to, where we belong. With that said I'll take any questions you might have. Selectman Roy: Merrimack River is an interstate waterway, right? Merrimack River is an interstate waterway? It goes beyond states, multiple states. So my question is, has the EPA weighed in on any of this? Have they been asked? Elvis Dhima: They don't need to. Selectman Roy: No, I think they do. They control the waterway. Elvis Dhima: Army Corp of Engineers does and we'll be contacting them for this. We'll also be contacting the State as well, for the permits necessary for this. So we're looking at shoreline protection, dredge and fills and the crossing for the river as well. Selectman Roy: OK. Chairman Guessferd recognizes Selectman Dumont. Yes, had brought it up \$128,000 going towards trying to figure out what the regional impact would be and how we could either assist those neighboring communities most likely by wheeling the water. Has there been any numbers put to that or what Hudson could generate by doing that? Or any ideas to see if there's any benefit for us to that? Elvis Dhima: That's such a good question. So, we're not quite there yet on having the numbers in. But, it appears that all the communities around are projecting basically significant increase on what they need to use for water. So what's going happen is, even though these communities around us, Pelham, Windham, Londonderry, Litchfield, they might be able to have the infrastructure today. They want to build a crossing big enough to make sure this is it for the next 50 years capacity wise if they end up deciding and expanding their systems. So, this is going to be probably one of the biggest crossings you'll ever see in New Hampshire. We're talking about a 24" maybe 30" pipe. It's the real deal. I'll be able to crawl in from Nashua no problem. That's how I'll test it out. It is the real deal, it's pretty significant. It's a very big investment for this region and the State is taking it very seriously. Because, you either have Manchester or Pennichuck. And anyone else, good luck. But basically trying to, anywhere to connect it somehow and just have everyone basically utilize. Because the capacity is there but the treatment, it's going to get very difficult. Especially with community wells because you can't get these forever chemicals out. It's just not sustainable if you have a small scale well. If you have a treatment facility like Manchester and Pennichuck, it makes sense, it's all based on scale. So, the idea is to, for us, to continue to provide water for the same rates. I mean that's been basically, you know, one of the main things. Selectman Dumont: Yes, that's what I wanted to make sure. Because quite frankly I don't like the idea being, I guess, forced into business with only one. But, there's limited options with water supply so if that's the case I want to see a benefit for Hudson. One of them, obviously the water rates, staying the same. And then if we're wheeling water and have an opportunity to offset some of those costs, maybe even reduce it at some point that seems worthwhile. So that's why I kind of wanted to point that out. Elvis Dhima: And I will tell you there's been discussions with Dracut Water and Tyngsboro next door and they're willing to do what we refer to as an emergency connection. They're very close to our border, about 800 feet. They can provide about half a million gallons a day. We don't have to utilize it we don't have to pay for it, it's there if we need to. That is also something we're pursuing as well, it's going to be presented later on. It's going to be a great connection between Mass. and NH. One of the, I think there's only two available right now, we might be the third one. So, we're not going to lock ourselves in just to one player. We're going to try keep the wells going to as well. Technology today might not be financial, feasible. But, tomorrow that could change. So we're not going to give away the rights, we're not going to give away the wells. We might just make some necessary changes internally, but, we're not going to corner ourselves to basically what we need to pay. That's not going to happen here. Selectman Dumont: Just wanted to make sure. Elvis Dhima: No, no. We're on the same page. But, we're going to have other options as well. There's a lot going on and I don't want to overwhelm you, but, there's a lot coming this way very soon. But, we have options, we're putting a lot of effort into it. There's a lot of resources put into, a lot of people into it, we want to make sure we're all set. And again, it doesn't cost us more money going into it. That is the main thing, we're trying to keep this financially feasible for all of us. Selectman Morin: This river crossing is the main piece of what the Senators came in and said they were looking for in the future, correct? If we don't have this, we don't have the rest of it. Elvis Dhima: That is exactly it. That's what Senator Carson and Morse was talking about. Basically that's exactly it and there's a lot of people that are going to depend on this as well and we're going to be the key players. The transmission line comes through us. This is a good thing and the value of this like I said is somewhere between \$500,000 - \$600,000, it's a big nut. We're not talking small potatoes. And we don't need to make a match. It's our first one this year, off to a good start. Chairman Guessferd asked if there was anyone else. First, just a real quick question, I didn't see, maybe I missed it. I'm assuming that counsel reviewed this. Elvis Dhima: Yes. Chairman Guessferd: And a second thing, it's more of a comment and to go along with what's being said, PFAS and all this, and you're right, it's huge. There's a lot of things happening and as our wells are affected, and we might have to shut them down, you know we're relying more on this water coming across, there's a lot going on. Last week the theme at the NRPC forum was water management and it was eye opening. Like you said, there' a lot coming down the pike and Hudson is going to be right in the middle of it. We appreciate everything we can hear and understand about it because it's not a, I think you said it, it's not a simple issue. And for most of us who are not in that business, we need to understand it and be able to know what the effect is on our Town's folks here. That's the only thing I wanted to mention. Selectman Jakoby: Can I just add one thing? As people have been getting their wells tested, at some point if there are other private wells that are not usable, how do we get water to those citizens as well? So, it's really an interesting topic that I'm sure we'll be addressing a lot. But, I know of one, just getting some people letting me know what's coming in. So it's interesting to think of those options with many people far from public water services. Elvis Dhima: And I'm a person on a private well just like you. Where I live I don't have access to municipality water. And the weird thing about this whole thing is that it's not really enforceable on private well owners. This is only for basically water utilities. And there's a question that gets put out there that why are they going after municipalities and utilities vs. manufacturers that's still producing the PFOAs and all those things and we're the low hanging fruit, right? They can beat on us all day. They can't beat on a homeowner, good luck with that. So they go after us, the fragile. We always try and comply, that's come up multiple times, why they're not going after this. But, the people that are on private well, they don't have to worry about this, it's something you have to obviously keep an eye on but, they're not going to come down and shut off your private well. I want to make sure they understand that. Selectman Jakoby: I'm not saying that, I'm saying that as more and more people test their wells and water becomes more of an issue where wells are not viable, it'll become a municipality issue for how to get water to people who can no longer have a viable well. Elvis Dhima: I can tell you personally I have a \$120 carbon filter... Selectman Jakoby: I know its filtration systems and things but, all I'm saying is those are the questions I just know are going to be coming our way. Because some people are closer to municipal water than others. Elvis Dhima: We don't have plans right now to extend any water mains... Selectman Jakoby: And that's what I wanted you to say. Just wanted to let people know that. Elvis Dhima: But if it's there and there's plans to extend it everyone is more than welcome. I don't think in the ten years I have been here we haven't said no to anyone that's willing to basically play by our rules and ... Selectman Jakoby: To extend it? Elvis Dhima: Well to extend it at their cost and basically we take ownership of it, but I think one of the reasons you, as a town, have been very successful maintaining the rates is because you've managed it the proper way and you haven't gone and done the things that they were doing prior to taking it. Because they were basically expanding 2 miles to catch one customer and the rest of them didn't want to connect. It's just not sustainable. So, if it's done the proper way, but, if the water's available in front of them or someone or a private developer extends it and everyone's connected, absolutely. Everyone is welcome. We just don't want people to feel that oh here we are going to put down 20 miles and then we've taken a 120 million dollar bond to do that. Selectman Jakoby: Right, because there are ways to manage a private well with these issues as well. Elvis Dhima: Absolutely. Much more financially feasible, cost effective ways. Selectman Jakoby: Thank you. I just wanted to raise that, I appreciate it. Chairman Guessferd recognizes Selectman Dumont: Kind of going back a little bit, but when this issue initially happened, Saint Gobain and there was mainly (inaudible) around Merrimack and Litchfield, they were actually, they got to a point where they started reimbursing private well owners for filtration systems. Now that Hudson's been added to one of those hot lists, is there any kind of remediation program that private citizens could look at for that? Or do you know if they're still offering anything like that? Elvis Dhima: They're going town by town. Londonderry's different, Litchfield is different, the only reason we're involved with this is because our community wells are in Litchfield. But as far as anyone that can be subject to reimbursement is, I would say, go online the NHDES website and there's a map that shows the area of impact. And I think that within this area, this boundary, or what they established between NHDES and Saint Gobain, I think you might be eligible for some kind of reimbursement or treatment. I know that Londonderry right now is dealing with that right now. Litchfield they decided to extend the well. But I think they're changing their approach on community to community. What they're doing in one community might not be the same as the other one. But I think the main thing is if you're in this area of impact, I think you have options. If you're outside of the area of impact, it's a little more difficult. Selectman Jakoby: Just a reminder, in the Town Crier is the website to get your well tested by the State and there are some funds available through that depending upon how your well is assessed. So that's one way. There's probably others. Selectman Dumont: I think Saint Gobain should pay for it all. Elvis Dhima: Get in line they'll tell ya, get in line. Chairman Guessferd: Anymore further discussion? <u>Selectman Dumont made a motion, seconded by Selectman Jakoby to approve and authorize the Town Administrator to sign the Memorandum of Understanding, as recommended by the Town Engineer. Motion carried 5-0.</u>

#### H. Update Regarding Taylor Falls & Veteran's Memorial Bridge

Chairman Guessferd recognized Town Engineer, Elvis Dhima. Elvis Dhima: Thank you Mr. Chairman. So, as you might have notice on Facebook and if you got a red alert through us, system through a voice mail, a text message or an email, the Twin Bridges project is starting June 3rd. The schools have been notified. It's going to start with Veteran's Memorial Bridge which is basically the bridge you take to go from Hudson to Nashua. That's the first one we're going to work on, that's rates a 6 right now out of 10. The other one is a 7. It's going to take about 12 months, we're hoping it's going to be somewhere between 6-9. But we're planning for 12 months. We're going to do one lane at a time. As you drive through the one we're going to start with is the one on the right hand side. So you'll be going to the left. This is going to cause backups along Rte. 102, 111 and when people get sick and tired of waiting, they're going to go and jump on Lowell Road which is a nightmare to begin with and then off to Sagamore. The ones that don't have that option, they're going to sit there unit they get through. Mr. Malizia said, well why can't you just wait until school closes. It's going to be closed when school opens anyways in September. The reason we did that is I wanted to get a better understanding to what things are going to look like. If we need to make any necessary changes for the schools. We'll have three months to do that during the season. I feel that people will adopt to it, we contacted WMUR they're going to be covering this as well. Hopefully before the project starts, not after but, I'm not holding my breath. It's going to be something that's going to impact everyone, it's going to be a long process. There's no sugar coating it. I'm hoping it's not as bad as we think it is, but, hopefully people will adjust and make necessary adjustments. My take on it is you're going to see more pressure on Lowell Road because that's what's going to happen. And with that said, this is, doesn't require any action tonight it's more for everyone that's watching, put the word out there, get ready. Avoid it if you can, if you can't get some good music on and enjoy it, you know. It's going to be awhile. It's only morning traffic, it's not going to be afternoon traffic or night, it's just morning trying to get over the bridge. Chairman Guessferd: I'll be one of those trying to go across into Nashua to work, so. Elvis Dhima: You might want to take Sagamore, you know, I think that might be better. Pick your poison, right? Selectman Dumont: But a boat. Elvis Dhima: Buy a boat. If someone asks for that I'll say yes, there'll be ferry service getting you across. Selectman Morin: I would just caution you, only morning. Because everyone coming into Hudson has to go back to Nashua. So it's probably going to be an all-day event. Elvis Dhima: Morning will probably be the worst, but ya, you're cutting your capacity in half. You'll be cutting that. And it's about 30-35,000 vehicles going over that bridge every day. Both during the day, so that's a lot of traffic. What are you going to do? I can hear the crying from here already, but what are you going to do? It is what it is. I gotta a lot of phone calls, I was very clear says call Nashua Engineering Department but I guess they didn't pick up the phone so everything landed over here. I'm going to reroute everything to DPW, make sure they can handle it. They're coming, people have been pretty good about it, they understand it, they appreciate the heads up. I think that's all going to change when they kind of get up in the morning, like oh my God. But it is what it is. There's not much we can do, it needs to get done. There's a face lift approach to this but also there's some structural elements to this particular repair as well. The idea is if we do this now it's not going to turn into a 20 million dollar project later down the road. For bridges and structures like this, it goes from 2 million to 10 million in a heartbeat. So, we caught it in time, we got the Federal, this is as you know, 80% covered by the Feds and the State. The 20% gets split between the Town of Hudson and the City of Nashua so we're only looking at 10% of this. From 1.5 million dollars is now \$250,000. Not a bad gig. And we're using bridge aide money that we got so zero impact to the taxpayer, thank God. That was good. That's it, I just wanted to put that out there. I'll take any questions you might have and hopefully everyone can spread the good word. Chairman Guessferd: Somebody in the audience here, so why don't you come on forward. Deb Putnam from the Sustainability Committee. Deb Putnam: Elvis, could you go in to the extent to which, this is not just a quick paving job. This is something that they're actually working on the superstructure of the bridge. I don't think there's people in Hudson, judging from the Facebook postings, understand the extent to which this is not a refurbishing, this is not making it look better. Can you speak to the state of the bridge and the extent of the work? Elvis Dhima: Yes, thank you. So, the intent is basically, just so everyone understands, this whole project started with us doing coring at the bridge. Going through the asphalt, going through the membrane, going through deck. And the idea is to rip up the sidewalk, well the, I'm sorry the pavement, the membrane that separates the pavement from the concrete. Expose the concrete decking and do any repairs necessary. So the appears to be some soft spots in there. Obviously you can't see the river when you drive through, thank God. But, its things of that sort we're going to be doing. We're going to be repairing the guardrails, we're going to repair the street lights. I don't know if you've noticed but some of them do this and are hanging in the wind there. We had to cut one of them. That's going to be done as well. They are going to get underneath the bridge as well and do some work over there, as well too. To how the bridge deck sits on the piers, as well. And all this work still does not include to the work that we need to do associated with erosion at the major pier that holds both bridges in there we have to get to that as well. But that's not part of this project, this will be something we need to tackle later on. But there is structural components to this, they need to get to underneath it. The bridge work, it's a little different that road work because there's a lot more safety elements to it. It's slower, it takes a different person to work on this vs. a road. It's not your regular paving job. So everything takes longer. There's a structural component to this particular project, it's not just a paint job. There's a bit more to it. And hopefully, when they rip everything out, it's not bad. We're now getting into ripping off the deck, we're hoping it's just small patches here and there that's what we're hearing out there, but. It's thorough work and it's going to be handled by third parties and the Feds and the State will be involved. It's a different animal. This is really like a superstructure, it's not like Lowell and First Brook that we're going to get done in three months, stop the brook. Get in there, get it done. This is a little different. Chairman Guessferd: Yes and different site conditions could make this, you just don't know what you're going to run into. Elvis Dhima: There's only so much you can do during the winter. So obviously during the summer you can do so much and during the winter can do so much. It's just changes everything. But, Jersey barriers will be there permanently until the lane is done. And then when one land is done we're going to be switching to the other one. So you will see Jersey barriers out there permanently for 6-9 months, probably 12 months. Chairman Guessferd: And that's both lanes, it'll take, we're going to do both lanes in that time frame. It's not going to be 6-12 for each lane. Elvis Dhima: Yes. Its 6-12 months for the entire bridge. And then when we're done with one bridge, we'll be jumping to the other one. Chairman Guessferd: Any other discussion? I think we're good. Thank you very much for coming and giving us status especially given what we've all recently seen. Elvis Dhima: Thank you have a good night.

#### I. Status of Hudson Community Power

Chairman Guessferd: The Hudson Sustainability Committee wanted to get here and show us a little bit about what the status is. There's charts in our packets. He wasn't able to connect HDMI wise, so just follow along with the charts and we'll look at the status of the Community Power update. The Chair recognizes Craig Putnam. Craig Putnam: 59 Rangers Drive. Thank you Mr. Chair. So, I'll just jump right into the third slide which is a little bit looking back. We started the enrollment process of Hudson Community Power in late January and it ran for about a month ending in late February. There are four rates that customers can choose from. There's the Granite Basic rate which is the default rate at 8.1 cents/kw hour at 24.3% renewables. And then there's three additional rates that people could opt up to Granite Plus at 33%, Clean 50 at 50%, and Clean 100 at 100%. The prices are in the notes there as well. Customers that want to opt up, or out or in can do so by calling the customer service center for Community Power which is at (866) 603-7697 or you can use the Hudson Community Power website at communitypower@nh.gov/hudson. And again you can do any of the options you might want do at either. Either calling the number or going to the website, there's a form there on the website. And you'll need your Eversource account number in either case. There were some enrollment issues, most of them had to do with incomplete account data being provided to Community Power by Eversource. And that was the root of most of the problems. There were a few other issues, but they all got handled. One of the continuing issues is net metering. Progress is being made but, I still can't give you a date at which the problem will be resolved. But I'll keep the Committee posted as I have news on that. Chairman Guessferd: Can you give a simple explanation of what net metering is? Craig Putnam: So net metering is primarily when people have solar on their property, behind their meter, solar. They're paying for, they're paying the net so the solar planes generate power, that power will be consumed first by the home, or the business. Then any excess that might be available from the panels gets pushed out into the grid. And so the meter that you have installed actually records two numbers every month as opposed to just the one. When it's night time or it's a very cloudy day or your (inaudible) gets covered by the snow, you're pulling from the grid and so you're importing data. So you pay the net of the difference between those two. And that's where the term comes from for net metering. The next slide basically is some numbers on enrollment, that's as of the 7th of May. There were at that time 9,120 total electricity customers in Hudson. 8,527 of them were on the Granite Basic Default rate for Hudson Community Power. 239 customers had opted in, I would presume most of those were probably customers that came off of contracts with competitive suppliers. Some of them might be net metering customers. Net metering customers are not automatically enrolled because it could possibly financially harm them. Given the current state of play. So they were not automatically enrolled. But, you can do an analysis that would indicate that, oh I could enroll and still

benefit from that and in which case those people could opt in. 7 customer in total opted up from the Granite Basic to a higher level of renewables. 347 customers in total opted out of the program. So in terms of futures, CPCNH is continuing to grow, robustly I might add. 14 more communities are scheduled to launch in June. CPCNH expects that there will be 60 communities in total by the end of the calendar year. We're already serving approximately 1/3 of the population of the state of New Hampshire. So, it's been quite a ride so far and continues to grow. CPCNH is on track for hitting their reserve targets that are specified as part of the founding documents, so that's all good news. A new rate period is going to take place or take effect on August 1st. That's when Eversource and the other utilities change their rates, is August 1st and February 1st. And the CPCNH is expected to change their rates at that time as well. They are required by law, as all the utilities are, to publish their new rates at least 30 days in advance of August 1st. sometime in late June or the first day or two of July both Eversource and CPCNH will be coming out with their rates. A note that Eversource in the current rate period right now, their rate is, you could say is artificially low by 1 1/2 cents per kw/hour because they're being forced by the PUC into a 1 1/2 cent remittance for previous over charging. That's only for rate class R customers which is homeowners, basically. Homeowners and small business. So, it's not affecting commercial customers. But that remittance will go away and so Eversource rates will become more in line with the other utilities starting August 1st. CPCNH is working on some new offerings. One is an annual twelfth month rate offering for customers with larger loads. That could be commercial and industrial customers or municipalities. This is not something that is initially thought to be initially offered to homeowners and so on. The final thing I wanted to note is that community specific discretionary reserve funds is something that is allowed for and possible built into the founding documents of Community Power. It's not an option today for and communities to do that, but we expect it, starting August 1st, it will become an option for communities. It's not something that's required, a community can decide to do this or not. But basically the idea would be that you, if you wanted to, build an adder onto your rates. I'll invent, maybe a 1/10 of a cent, something like that per kilowatt hour. And then that adder goes into a town specific discretionary fund. You can almost think of it like a capital reserve fund. It's baked into the rates. Again, it's entirely optional, it would be up to the Board to decide whether or not Hudson wants to do that. It is something, I believe you might want to bring to the voters through a warrant article. Although, I don't think that's actually required. And with that I'll take any questions. School Board Representative, Grace Kennedy: So is this part of ISO New England? Craig Putnam: So, Community Power is purchasing power in ISO New England, yes. We are CPCNH is not a market participant yet. The market participant actually is Calpine Energy Solutions which is a CPCNH partner. And so they're the actual market participant. The intent is that over time CPCNH as they build up their capital reserve funds, will become available. They will be able to become a market participant themselves. I'm not sure if I'm answering your question. Grace Kennedy: Granite (inaudible) has 24.3% renewable. What is considered renewable? Craig Putnam: Renewables are things such as solar, could be bio-fuels, wind, hydro, those all would be considered renewable. Grace Kennedy: Do you know what percent of energy is produced by Seabrook? Craig Putnam: In the ISO pool, if you give me one second I can tell you what it is at the moment. I have an app for that. Right at the moment, 24% of the ISO electricity is being produced by Seabrook. Grace Kennedy: And what percent is renewables? Craig Putnam: Right at the moment, 5%. Grace Kennedy: 5%. I heard from a state representative that the state has spent about a half a billion dollars on renewables but only gets 3%. Energy from renewables. Wind and solar especially. Craig Putnam: So, OK, I'm not sure how you'd like for me to respond to that. Grace Kennedy: I mean to get up to 34% there's going to have to be some changes, more... Craig Putnam: So, the way that, so the 24.3% renewables rate is achieved. That's something that applies to all of the utilities. That is the same rate of renewables that Eversource has to meet as well by the way. As to all the other utilities. That's achieved generally by purchasing what are called renewable energy certificates. And they may be generated in a variety of ways. People that have solar panels can if they choose, participate in a market that would buy their renewable energy credits. And so they get pooled and there's a market for that and utilities can go purchase that. Some of those recs are purchased from out of state. Not all of it is coming from New Hampshire, not all of its coming even from the IOS market. That's how the utilities have achieved the 24.3%. Chairman Guessferd asked if there was anyone else. The Board thanks Mr. Putnam. Craig Putnam: Oh, there is one other thing. At the annual meeting this past month, the members from various communities were given these, and I wanted to present it. This is the donation from my wife and I. The Sustainability Committee as well as the HEAC. (Unveiled is a framed Community Power logo). The Board thanks Mr. Putnam again.

# J. Request to Use Energy Efficiency CRF for HVAC Improvements

Chairman Guessferd recognized Police Chief, Tad Dionne. Chief Dionne: There's nothing worse than following someone who gives a gift to the Board before you get up. Selectman Morin: Chief you are a gift. Chief

Dionne: Thank you sir. So, I'll give you a little history about our HVAC, actually I learned a lot more about HVAC than I ever thought I would. And some members of the Board or all of you knew more than I did before this. Our HVAC system is you know, 24 years old, I'm sorry 30 years old. It's as old as this building, 1994. We may have had one software upgrade, we may have, I don't know to be exact. But we're using very old software system. I know in general that a commercial building like ours operates pretty standard system where we're sending our (inaudible) through the main duct system at about 55 degrees and it has to maintain a certain volume so we have a global software system that's running that. And then we have throughout our old portion of the building, not part of the new renovation, we have 24 VAB boxes or variable air volume boxes. Within those boxes you can add heat to certain areas of the building and you'll be getting that standard temperature in there so you can either add it or chill it more when you add volume to it etc. And that has to be controlled by a VAB controller or a box controller. And we have 24 of those that is also, has its own software as well. Our VAB controllers, for instance, have changed ownership 4 or 5 times, they're no longer supported. Our software is no longer supported for the global end of it. So we're trying a strategic approach at upgrading the software globally. And then also upgrading our VAB controllers at least taken a hit on the ones that are failing that need the most help. So this particular presentation here, we are at requesting to upgrade the software system globally to an N4 8000 Jayce, essentially to control it. It allows us to program, it allows us to do a lot of different things that our system doesn't do now at all. Our system doesn't talk and this will allow the VAB valve controllers actually talk to the global system. And the VAB controllers operate off of thermostat so, it'll allow all that system to kind of work together. So we're taking a strategic approach on that where as we move on year after year we can replace more and more of those controllers until they're all replaced. So, we're also asking that we, that you wave the bidding process on this one because our particular system has been maintained by Control Technologies for 30 years. They're also agreeing to do the maintenance on our new HVAC system. They're intimately, they have intimate knowledge of the building they've helped keep it running through all these years. So that's part of what we're here to do today. I worked with the Sustainability Committee on this with Debbie and Craig Putnam on this as well. They're in support of this. We're asking for the money that come be appropriated from the Energy Efficiency Capital Reserve Fund. They can speak to the spirit to that, this goes to the spirit of that particular fund. I'm before you to ask for two things, one, to waive the bidding process so we can use Control Technologies to continue that. And two, so we can appropriate the funds in the amount of \$39,714.00, it's in the packet. And I'll also take any questions you may have about any of this. Selectman Roy: So it going to be two different systems? One for the old portion of the building and then one for the new? Chief Dionne: That's what we have now. Yes. Selectman Roy: And will those be able to talk to each other? Chief Dionne: They could. Yes. This will allow that, it will allow them to be able to talk to each other. Not necessarily necessary, but it would allow that. Selectman Roy: OK. That was my only question. Selectman Jakoby: On the waiving of the bid process, just again, I understand this is a company you work with regularly. What is the detrimental effect to you going out to bid and allowing them to bid alongside others? Chief Dionne: I would want them to do it because they're the ones who've maintained this, no different I guess at this point with 30 year old system of having a doctor who's been working on you for 30 years, I would want that doctor who's been keeping it up there. That's solely why we decided not to go to ... Selectman Jakoby: Why you're requesting the waiver. Chief Dionne: Correct. We did so, and I will say that there's a little more to it than that. We did ask many companies through, working through New Hampshire Saves and working through Eversource, we asked some vendors help put together a plan, sort of like an energy audit, we couldn't get anybody to come out. We had one person come out, they did give us a quote as well, simply for the software, but it's not even the same system, so you really couldn't compare it. It was a different Jayce (?) so to speak. It was a different controlling mechanism. It was through Snyder Electrics, I guess. But I mean the price was not that far off, it's different than what we were looking at. Selectman Jakoby: Let me just clarify then for people who are listening. So you had it started by looking at an energy audit and you had difficulty having any company to come out to do that audit. You had one company come out and do that audit, but then figured out that it was more about having the HVAC system, the new and the old, all working together and having a company that has serviced this for over 30 years really continue with that service because they know the system. Chief Dionne: Correct. Selectman Jakoby: Is that what I'm understanding. Chief Dionne: Yes, it is. It started a little bit more like, hey, your system is not supported. The system doesn't have, it's expired it's not, and you that's kind of how we started looking at it. This was while the project was going on. And so we were trying to get together some information that would be prudent to present to the Board as to why we need to withdraw money from Energy Efficiency Fund and to show that is was an energy efficient situation. I was hoping for something in abject numbers as opposed to subjective. Just hey, its common sense too that if we have software that's up to date it will provide energy efficiency. The software would allow us even to, it would even know if the rooms occupied. It would know, you could program it for, it would be working in the same situation on a weekend when nobody's in those rooms, for instance. It is a common sense argument but we were hoping for something more comprehensive to bring to the Board. That's why we went through Eversource and New Hampshire Saves. Quite honestly a lot of them were like, oh we thought this was a new project. And we even asked the contractor who worked on the old system, I'm sorry the new system, would you be willing to give us a quote for maintaining both systems and they said no, we don't want to deal with the old system at all. Whereas when we talked to Control Technologies, they said, would you give us a quote for maintenance on the new system they said, sure. They're familiar with the rest of the building, they had no problem having to maintain our new ... Selectman Jakoby: And I think it's important that you had asked another company who was in this field and they did not want to deal with the old system. Whereas this company is willing to deal with both systems to marry them together. As well as they can. Chief Dionne: Correct. Selectman Dumont: So just a couple questions. Do they do HVAC installation as well as maintenance or do they strictly just do controls and maintenance? Chief Dionne: I don't know if they install HVAC systems I don't know that. Selectman Dumont: So, I guess on a tough question would be is if they do that style of work, did they submit a bid for the new system that was installed at the addition of the police station? And if so, was that bid in range with other bids or was it significantly higher, is why they didn't get that job? Chief Dionne: Did Control Technologies submit a bid? I don't know if they submitted a bid. The general contractor may have known that. Selectman Dumont: Right. I just didn't know. That would help me see where their numbers were coming, if they were on line with that. Or if they simply don't do that style of work, well that would make sense. I appreciate obviously, sticking with the same guy for 30 years and I'm sure there's a lot more benefits there than where we've talked about. I'm just trying to get my head wrapped around, that's all. Chief Dionne: We used them strictly to service and maintain on a general basis. That's what we used them for at this point. As far as instillation I am not sure. Chairman Guessferd: I'll just expound a little bit on that. In the contracting world I live in, we call that unique capabilities. You know, it justifies what we call like a soul source justification for a particular company. You provide a good attached document here on the bid form. Ideally I'd probably like a little bit more of that detail. You know in terms of going out for another, go out talking to the company. Perhaps using those kinds of terms. You know, this is a unique capability because of their, you know, I'm not going to word-smith them. You did fill out the form, you did provide rational in the way you're going with this. But, from my purposes I think, going forward, you're either going with the company because they're the best value like with the Brox situation. And/or they have a unique capability that no other company could provide. And you've given the rational in here for that, so. I guess that's my take on it. I'm not necessarily asking to do anything else here, but, as we do these things and again, these things come before us all the time for waiving the bid process. Just making sure we're documenting it very, very well. That's the best we can do for, that's what we can do for our citizens is just, so if anybody comes in with a Right-to-Know or anybody comes in auditing or whatever that they can see very clearly and concisely that this was a low bid, this was lower than anybody in the industry, this was a unique capability whatever it is. So that's the only thing I would say is that let's just continue to kind of keep our heads wrapped around that and not just the Police Department, but everybody who come in here and asks to waive the bid process. I mean I have no objection to what you're doing here. We even had a conversation when I did the walk through. Selectman Jakoby: Yes I just wanted to add and ask a question. Is this an immediate need with the bid, would a bid process prevent you from doing things that you need done? Is the timing an issue for bidding? Chief Dionne: No, I would say that I don't want a failure to occur which is what could happen. There's no upgrading, there's no supporting whatsoever. It's not targeting each other. The whole idea is to avoid this for being a catastrophe, it's not a catastrophe at this point. It's not happening. I don't know how imminent it is, but, I know it's a bad situation. Selectman Jakoby: That's fine. I'm just probably going to vote against the motion to waive the bidding process just because of where I'm sitting right now with the information I have. Chief Dionne: I guess my question would be, if I could, would the Board, if I came here with the bids and it was a higher bidder, and I said this is the people we want, does that mean we wouldn't be allowed to use that person because they've been servicing the building for 30 years and that's what I feel comfortable with. Would that be a situation where you'd vote against it? Selectman Jakoby: Can I answer? I actually went into the big book that I have reading some about bids. That there are ways of picking a higher bid because of those unique features based on those things. So there's always some flexibility within the bidding process. But it's important for the bidding process to see the options. And that's my only concern is, I don't have a clear enough vision of what that price point is connecting it. So I just want to be clear as to why that's where I'm sitting. And from what I read, in case anybody has a different understanding, is there is some flexibility within that. Because you can put certain criteria in and I think one of the bids you had a while ago for our engineering, he said this was the only company that could fulfill all the requirements. So you might have companies come in that can only fulfill half your requirements, those automatically drop off. But there's still a bid to compare to. Chairman Guessferd: Yes, and part of that contracting language is best value. This is the best value. In this case it kind of seems like that to me. You don't always have to pick the low bidder. It all depends on the procurement. But in my case I'm comfortable with doing this, I'm comfortable enough. I think I'm good on my end. Anybody else?

Selectman Morin made a motion which was not seconded to waive the competitive bidding requirements as outlined in Hudson Town Code 98-1C and allow the Police Department to award the bid to Control Technologies, Inc. The Board did not make a motion to accept the Police Department's recommendation to use funds from the Energy Efficiency Capital Reserve Fund in the amount of \$39,714.00 to be used for HVAC improvements to software and control systems.

Chairman Guessferd: Well I guess let's kind of follow the, see if we can put something in there. And my advice would be to be very specific about what you're looking for. You know, could be things like familiarity with certain systems, things like that. Things that will clearly differentiate different contractors. Something like that. Chief Dionne: OK, thank you.

### K. Grant Acceptance – Domestic Cannabis Eradication/Suppression Program

Chairman Guessferd recognized Police Chief, Tad Dionne. Chief Dionne: Could I have Captain Cayot present this? Chairman Guessferd: Absolutely. Captain Cayot: Good evening members of the Board. So for the past several years the Hudson Police Department has applied for the Department of Justice Domestic Cannabis Eradication/Suppression Program Grant and has been awarded said grant. This year was no exception, and we applied for the grant and the DOJ actually awarded us \$20,000 under this grant, which is actually \$5,000 more than they did last year. What I'd like to do is briefly explain what this grant is, what it's used for and actually what we did with it last year just so everyone has a better understanding of what it is. So this is DOJ money that is used for the purposes of suppression efforts including but not limited to the investigation of drug trafficking organizations involved in marijuana production and distribution. It's also money that's used to investigate and report instances involving the trafficking of controlled substances. This is DOJ money that is accepted by states where marijuana is both legal and illegal. And in talking about that, California where marijuana is legal, is actually the highest recipient and has the most erad arrests and seizures under this grant. What this money is not for, is not designed for the investigation and prosecution of the end user of marijuana. And like I said before, its money that's accepted by both states where it's legal and illegal to have marijuana. So like I said, last year we got \$15,000. \$1,500 of that was used for equipment which can be used year round outside of the grant but it was also used during the hours we worked this grant. And then this next activity I'm going to talk about is actually activity that would not have happened without this grant money. We wouldn't have the money to provide these officers to do this. So using the DOJ money, the officers conducted 67 car stops, made 19 arrests, took 16 OF reports, conducted 5 field interviews and took 1 accident report. In addition to that, it was a force multiplier and the officers were out there assisting patrol on several calls as well. So the above stops arrests and OF reports led to the seizure of fentanyl, cocaine, methamphetamine, various prescription drugs, mushrooms and marijuana. Of the arrests, the majority of them were actually drug arrests for distribution, not just possession. Several other arrests of note that were made during it is we had one arrest on a warrant for subject who had 10 charges of possession of child pornography. And one arrest for someone for reckless conduct with a deadly weapon. So that's the activity we did last year with the \$15,000 we had received. So the reason we're here today is we're requesting authorization to accept the \$20,000 that the DOJ has granted us this year. Any questions? Chairman Guessferd: Questions, comments from the Board? Selectman Roy: How much cultivation did you get rid of? Captain Cayot: Last year we did not have any of the cultivation. Selectman Roy: OK. And now do you have to report what you're using the money for and what the activities are? Captain Cayot: Absolutely. Monthly it gets reported to the DEA and then back to the DOJ. And if you read through the packet that was provided as well it highlighted a few areas. It is for cultivation but there are also several other areas that it can fall under as well, the activities you conduct. Selectman Roy: And it's not all marijuana? Captain Cayot: That is what this is designed for but, no, it doesn't have to be. One of the areas is actually, one of other specific lines in there is used to investigate and report instances involving the trafficking of controlled substances. So there are lines that talk about marijuana, but it also talks about other controlled substances as well. And a majority of what we found during that last year, the majority of that was not marijuana. Chief Dionne: And I will add one more point to this. Regardless of whether we have this grant or not, this is still what we do. It is what we have to do with the tax payers' money or what we do with the grant. Captain Cayot: I can give you a quick case that we actually recently worked, it wasn't under this grant but it's the type of case we would work under this grant. We conducted an investigation we had a warrant for someone who was distributing marijuana. They were coming up from out of state, they were bringing marijuana and selling it here in town. When we executed that arrest warrant and took that person into custody, we not only found additional marijuana, we found cocaine and we found prescription pills that were illicitly

being sold as well as \$5,000 that was bundled specific to what we typically see for a drug dealer. And that was just in the past couple weeks. And those are the types of activities we conduct using this money. Selectman Morin: My question was going to be exactly what you just said, does that fall under your drug enforcement group, which it does. Chairman Guessferd: I just wanted to make more of a comment, maybe more for discussion. Why don't you go ahead and make the motion and then I'll speak to it. Selectman Dumont made a motion, seconded by Selectman Morin to authorize the Hudson Police Department to accept the Domestic Cannabis Eradication/Suppression Program (DCE/SP) Grant which was awarded by the U.S. Department of Justice, Drug Enforcement Administration in the amount of \$20,000. Motion carried 4-1. Selectman Roy was opposed.

Chairman Guessferd: I just want to make the comment that from my perspective, doesn't matter what I think personally about marijuana. What is comes down to is giving you the tools and the ability and the support to enforce the law. That's my take on it and I get both sides of this, understanding that we're one of the only states in New England that hasn't legalized it with ... Selectman Roy: Millions of dollars on the table. Leave millions of dollars on the table. Chairman Guessferd: There's that piece of it but... Captain Cayot: Can I just add to that for one second? So states where marijuana is legal, the reason they're the biggest producers of using this money is because they want to stem the flow of illegal marijuana coming in through the drug trafficking organizations. Chairman Guessferd: With that goes controls. With that goes, what's being produced, what's being allowed. You know with the dispensaries and all of that so I get that. As much as it's legal it's uncontrolled. Captain Cayot: This grant definitely isn't a one way or another whether legal or illegal. I have the list of state that actually capitalize on it and most of them marijuana is actually legal. The states that are taking part in this grant. Chairman Guessferd: Correct. But my point I guess from my purpose is maybe I'm speaking just as the position I'm in. It is illegal in this state. It is still federally, there is still a federal prohibition for many folks on it. And so, that's where I kind of need to lie on this. So, we have a motion and a second, do you have any further comments? The Board thanks Captain Cayot.

#### L. First Responder Mental Health & Wellness Awareness

Chairman Guessferd: So now the next item on the agenda is really a joint presentation, or a joint discussion. Chairman recognizes Fire Chief, Scott Tice and Police Chief, Tad Dionne. Scott Tice: Good evening. Recently the Fire Department realized we need to do a little bit more to support our employees' mental health. Not only do they have all the same stress that everybody else has in their live but they face the traumatic events they deal with as part of their job. So where the PD is a little bit further ahead of us, and share some of the same issues, we've started working together to try to pool our resources and work together as much as possible. For our part, I've got a draft of a plan. Most of this is contingent on funding and we have applied for an Assistance to Firefighters Grant on this so we're not ready to move forward with this yet. Because anything we did that's covered by the grant before we were awarded the grant, jeopardizes the grant. But as an overview of the program, we try to be proactive, creating a culture that's more supportive of our employees and their mental health through leadership training and mental health training. We would be looking to do mental health check-ups where each of the employees would go to a clinician, a competent clinician. Which is somebody who understands emergency services and this type of trauma. And they would have the opportunity to speak to that person for an hour once a year. Really anything they wanted. You know they could get career advice, they could get advice on coping mechanisms, or if they experienced and issues they can talk about that. Sometimes even those are resistant, once they get there usually end up talking about something and sometimes this is their first step into getting some sort of care that they need. Another thing we would be looking to do, and jump in any time. Another thing we would be looking for is to have that clinician on retainer. And what that would do, that would give us 24/7 access to this clinician so if we had an employee who had a crisis, like a mental breakdown, we would have some place to get in contact with immediately and send them for an initial consultation to ensure that there's no, they're not going to do harm to themselves or anything like that and to be able to kind of get them stabilized. Then the clinician would work to get them to somebody for lasting care, follow-up care. The clinician on retainer would not do the ongoing care of the person because there's got to be a separation there. What we'd also be looking to do with, it would add time on every month. This person could work with both departments. That time could be used for some of the mental health check-ups. It could be used for training, they could be a consultant if we were going to start some sort of a new project or policy related to mental health. Our peer support team isn't anything like that, they would be able to consult on that. They would also be available for critical incident debriefings so if we had a major incident that we needed somebody come in and help with a debriefing for our people, they would be a major part of that. One thing the Fire Department, the Police

Department is already a little bit ahead of us, we would be looking to create a peer support team and what that is it would be our own people who get some training. And they're not mental health clinicians or practitioners or anything like that. They're somebody, a coworker or friend, just somebody that is trained to recognize somebody who may be having an issue that could help get them to recognize it. People tend to not, you know, sometimes be in denial when they have an issue, so they can help recognize and issue. Help guide that person into getting the help they need or sometimes just being somebody to talk to. Sometimes just being able to talk and have somebody to get whatever it is off their chest. To get them, just give them somebody to talk to, a sounding board. So most of this, like I said, is contingent upon funding and is covered by the grant we applied to and we hope to find out by early summer what the result of the grant would be. Chief Dionne: And the reason why I kind of let Chief Tice go first, is because both of us recognize our departments are similar, but different. And what works in the Fire Department in regards to mental health does not necessarily work in the Police Department and vice-versa, right? So we have a three pronged approach to our wellness officer program which starts with the building, the people in the building. The second approach is how we can help other departments within the town. And the third approach is crisis intervention for people in the residents, in the town. So this is really addressing the first prong of wellness within our building. Because we would work with, especially with training, that's where we can work best together is with training, right? We just did one with the clinician, as a matter of fact, with our supervisors. So all of our lieutenants and sergeants had training with our event clinician that we would use normally. Someone that's actually the same company shift that we had actually presented to you that had financial numbers in them. For us we already have paid support. We already have a wellness program policy and that encompasses our comfort dog, our critical incident stress management, briefing. It is very attractive, and I wasn't bringing this to the Board this year, but it is very attractive us to bring a clinician on board on retainer. That is something I'm interested in. But I also want to, we're walking through our steps because we're looking for buy-in. We're looking for buy-in from our employees. We want to make sure we have buy-ins. It is something that is ... Selectman Roy: Didn't we have a clinician on retainer for a while? Chief Dionne: No. We never had one on retainer. Chairman Guessferd: But we had on that we used. Selectman Roy: Right. Didn't we have one that we used? Chief Dionne: We use a psychiatrist, yes. Which is different than a clinician, right? But yes, we personally use the same psychiatrist for our hiring process. I still utilize that. But it's not a retainer. So the idea of having them on retainer is that we have these, you pick your choice whether you ask for 10 hours a month of clinical hours, or do you ask for 12 clinical hours, the price changed just a little bit. But in those clinical hours we can use the clinical hours for different things. And that retainer also covers if we needed a clinician during a debriefing or crisis, that retainer covers that crisis for the first 4 hours and doesn't even go against our clinical hours. So it doesn't reduce our clinical hours at that point. Dealing with some of the incidents, 4 hours would be a long time. The clinician would be on (inaudible) you could have something I'm sure. But that would be a long time. A typical debrief doesn't go 4 hours, or don't go over that. So I like the idea of having someone that's going to be in the building different times throughout the month and where the officers really don't know the clinician that we may use often, get to know her. Get to know her even better. Selectman Morin: Will this clinician be for both of you or are you having yours separate? Chief Dionne: We're looking at the same clinician. Like for instance the easiest thing for us to collaborate on is the training. They have training set aside for leadership to deal with mental health and how do our leaders within the building, how do they deal with employees in trouble? How do they recognize struggling employees, stuff like that? Selectman Roy: So would that clinician split their time between the Hudson Police Department and ... Chief Dionne: The way it would be set up is we'd each have to fund our clinician. But we could ask that, by all means. We're in the discussion process so we certainly could ask that. I would just keep in mind that it would be very difficult for us to have a same policy. Selectman Roy: No, I'm not suggesting that you do. I'm just saying the clinician. Chief Dionne: We've talked about this. Like say we get 12 hours total and for some reason we need 7 this month and Chief need 5 and we could kind of split that up. We have discussed that. I also don't think the prices are that bad that if we did separate that. I know she would be willing to collaborate on training, so in other words, I sure she would collaborate on training. But we've talked about that already where we could get maybe 10 of our employees, my 10 his 10 and we get them together in a class of 20. Be no problem for that. Selectman Roy: So I understand the joint training thing. That makes a lot of sense. But as far as clinician goes, what I'm suggesting is that maybe you up the hours but you have the same clinician and she spends Monday, Wednesday and Friday at the Police Department, whatever it is. You know what I'm saying, she splits her time between the Police Department and the Fire Department. Chief Dionne: We have discussed that. And again, I gave you in my packet, I submitted our wellness policy as it stands and I added a section. Section 5 was assed to that as a potential, and I gave you two alternative because when it comes to an annual check-in, I debate this with my wellness officer about whether or not it should be mandatory or voluntary. Because I don't want to run right by people with wellness, I want them to buy in and want this. And I discussed this before with this Board, I feel we have had in the past, a few long-term employees that we could have helped better if we had something like this. It's something I bought into. Selectman Roy: So I have a question about section 5, actually. So section 5, 5A. Do they get an 8 hour earned day per attending a 1 hour check-in? Chief Dionne: Yes. That would be an incentive. Selectman Roy: I don't that it's comparable. I don't know that... Chief Dionne: I'm trying to give them an incentive to go to a check-in. I guess it depends on what you think that's worth, I guess, in the end, and I understand where you're coming from 100%. That's an incentive. Selectman Morin: And if they need a check-in they probably need the time off. Selectman Roy: That's not the way this reads. Chief Dionne: No, it's not. It's not because historically the last person you're going to get, or convince to go to a check-in for no apparent reason other than it's going to be the person who needs it. We try to create an incentive to someone that, we're putting this out for every employee because ... Selectman Roy: Instead of every employee can we just be specific? Are you talking about all the employees in town or just the Hudson PD? Chief Dionne: I am speaking solely of first responders. In my particular building it would be police officers, dispatchers and my tow animal control people. Selectman Dumont: Have any these or have you guys kind of like asked around the department and say hey, what do you think about going to this? And did you get an overwhelming response or people saying I don't have the time for that? Chief Dionne: In our department, either of our departments, so I have mixed reviews, right? So I have some people who think this is an excellent. And there's other people who be like, I'd rather do this if I feel. Most of them feel great that we have these resources. But that doesn't translate to most of them want to use the resources mandatory. Selectman Dumont: Right. That's why I was asking I didn't know if you guys ... Chief Dionne: That's why my thought process was if we offer that incentive I fell we'll get more people who do it now voluntarily. If we mandate them to do it, I'm afraid I might lose some buy in so early in the program. Selectman Dumont: Yes, I would definitely be cautious about mandating someone to do it for sure. The only reason why I ask is because in my mind if you had half the guys saying no, don't bother me leave me alone, I would have to guess in that group is where you're going to see more of the people that probably need it. Where you would need that incentive more, right? So that's why I was asking, I didn't know which way it seemed to be. Chief Dionne: And if I shift a little bit to Selectman Roy's point about the earned time, I didn't pull that out of the air, we offer contractually an officer, so officers are required once every three years to take a PT test and pass a certain standard. Selectman Roy: Are you talking about psychiatric? Chief Dionne: No, I'm talking about physical fitness test. So on the off years, if they take that PT test as well, they do receive one earned day off to do it. That's a great incentive. Not everybody does it. Only some of the officers do it, but some of them do. That is a wellness program that's been started long before we had a wellness officer. What you're getting there is that you're ensuring that the officers are in peak enough shape to hit a certain standard, and not having to right before they really have to test, kind of bust really hard to get to that point and actually pass. So that's what we don't want. It's another incentive to keep people in better physical shape. And that is one that we utilize contractually now. When I was in that union I took advantage of it with a free day off. Selectman Dumont: Two questions and it would be for both of you guys. Do you feel once a year is enough? Do you think it's adequate or do you think that at any point that that should be made a bi-annual thing? I don't know if you think that's necessary. Chief Dionne: When you talk around, I don't think there's anybody who's doing more than annual. There's no one doing more than annual and there's only a few department's who's doing annual check-ins now. I think some of them are doing mandatory. Selectman Dumont: And the other question I had, and either of you guys might be able to answer or Mr. Malizia, but, will this affect the contract at all that with the union? There's a policy and procedure that earned day, you're allowed to allocate that or? Town Administrator: Well we've given them to the PT, I believe. So I don't, I can see an extension of that. Selectman Morin: For the police, but for the Fire it would be different because this is new. So we probably have to have a side bar, but that's going to be my comment reference to the buy-in. I can tell you with the incidents that we've dealt with in the last 2 years and some other ones, there is definitely buy-in on this. Without any exceptions. Chief Tice: this is really, if you had asked me even a year ago I thought we had come through some stuff. What I was getting from our employees is we had come through that pretty good. Since then some things have popped up that I think we really, on our side, started to realize that we need to do more. Everyone says they're fine but sometimes they don't know what's going on until something pops up that's a major issue. Selectman Dumont: I would agree on the follow up on that, I think that's our job. Obviously, you guys more so than us exactly, just to be available or have that option there. I definitely think it's extremely important, just back on the contract thing, if you had to do an MOU or whatever I would just obviously make sure that might be in line. Just so that way if we're all on agreeance on this the union isn't going to hold either one of you guys up. Selectman Jakoby: I just want to say reviewing this I think it's really comprehensive, mental health is a concern across the country right now. And I really like both policies and the idea of having a clinician on retainer makes a lot of sense to me. To have someone that employees will get to know. Having been in that field for a little bit it's that getting comfortable with an individual no matter who they are, even if you have to replace them. But, to have that expectation that they can be in the building that they're doing some training. I think it would be wonderful if you can contract together. You know both for economics but also for, I think there is first responder brotherhood across both departments, I'm sure as well, and sisterhood. You know if its people in that field have similar experiences to each other so. I commend you on both of these. Chief Tice: I did my research paper in my last class on mental health and the numbers, not just fire and police, but all walks of life and the stress related to the work place was staggering. Selectman Jakoby: It's amazing, yes. Selectman Roy: I have two questions: The first one is, why is there no mental health qualifications in your policy under section 4? There's no mention of mental health. Chief Dionne: I don't know, are you talking to Chief Tice or me? Selectman Roy: To you, police. Chief Dionne: Which one are you referring to the section for Mental Health Wellness Officer? Selectman Roy: Yes. There's no mention of any mental health education or training or anything that would qualify someone. Chief Dionne: We're going to send them to training, it's just one officer. That's their qualification when you send them to training. Selectman Roy: Well he's not going to be this wellness officer forever. Chief Dionne: Who? Selectman Roy: Jason Downey. Chief Dionne: What does that have to do with this? We would then have another officer apply for the position and then send them to the proper training they need. Selectman Roy: But it doesn't say that. It doesn't say that they're required to do that. Chief Dionne: The opening of the policy covers what they do or what they go to in the training end of it. The opening of the policy, section 2. It indicates what their responsibilities are ... Selectman Roy: They would have to commit to going to that training. Chief Dionne: Correct. We would ask them to apply ... Selectman Roy: So it should be in the qualification selection process portion of this. Chief Dionne: No. We don't select someone based on their training. We send them to the training once we select them. You know what I'm saying? Selectman Roy: No. I don't. Selectman Morin: But that's how it is everywhere. Special, people have to have a special knack for this. You can't just throw somebody ... Selectman Roy: Exactly. I would mean they would have to have some education or training. Selectman Morin: But the point the Chief is saying is you have to, I'm going to take Officer Downey for instance. He wanted to do this, he was in this a long time before the Police Department did it. Selectman Roy: But he has no education or training that backs up his qualifications. Selectman Morin: Officer Downey doesn't? Yeah he does. Selectman Roy: No. What's his education background? Selectman Morin: Officer Downey would you like to tell all the classes you've gone to? Seriously, he's done a ton of stuff. Selectman Roy: All I'm saying, all I'm saying it should be part of the qualifications that they have to go to that training. Selectman Dumont: It is. Selectman Roy: So it should be in the qualifications section. Selectman Dumont: It is, D. Last one. Selectman Roy: No. It just says change as scheduled for debriefs meetings and training. Selectman Dumont: As required by the position and needs of the agency. Selectman Morin: Right. Which is like any other job. Like lieutenant, you got to meet qualifications for the Fire Department. It's in the policy in the beginning, it doesn't have to state. We have one gentleman in the Fire Department that has a lot of training that's had numerous discussions with the Chief that would fit in position if the Chief chose to do it. But if he's got somebody else that wants to do it, they send him to training. Take our new firefighters. We're hiring firefighters without EMTA and CDL. We're sending them to that. It's the same thing. Selectman Roy: I think this is a bit of a higher level than that. But,... Selectman Morin: It is but I'm using it as an example. Selectman Roy: So then my second question to you is, is this policy coming before us for first read. Chief Dionne: It's not coming before you at all. I brought it to your attention for your purview. I'm not asking for your permission for the policy, it's already in place. Selectman Roy: What were the policy makers? Chief Dionne: We made the policy. Selectman Morin: A long time ago. This has been in place for a while. The Fire Department is the only one with the new one. Not the Police. Selectman Roy: So when did it come into ... Selectman Morin: Probably before our time. Because they've had it that long. Chief Dionne: The wellness officer came in after the voters approved. Selectman Roy: So that would have been in 2023. Chief Dionne: I have a lot of policies I'm sure you haven't reviewed. Selectman Roy: We're the policy makers so that kind of disturbs me. Chief Dionne: We're the policy maker. Selectman Roy: We're the ones that approve policy. That's part of our job. That's part of our job. Chief Dionne: No. I have 450 policies, have you approved them? Selectman Roy: I don't know. Chief Dionne: No you haven't. Selectman Roy: Well, I think you're wrong. Chief Dionne: I understand. We also hire police officers that have no police training. We do that every time. I mean half of our police officers had no prior police training when we hired them. We select them based on ... Selectman Roy: All I'm saying this is a little different level and there should be some either education or training that qualifies them to be in that position. Selectman Morin: They do. They give it to him once make him to that position. They provide them the training. Selectman Roy: But there's no qualifications before that. They don't have to have say, a degree in counseling or mental health or anything like that. Chief Dionne: That's correct, they don't. Selectman Roy: Wow. Wow. Selectman Morin: You have to understand, Officer Downey's level is totally different than the clinician and the psychiatrist. He's what starts the process. That's all. Selectman Roy: So he still doesn't need training? Selectman Morin: He does have training, he has a ton of training, Selectman Roy. Selectman Dumont: The only thing I think we're overlooking is the wellness officer is an extension of the Police force. That's what his initial training is in, and hold on please, they are required to get the adequate training to move them

into that mental health position. Selectman Roy: With no mental health training? Is that what you're saying? Selectman Dumont: Prior to, yes and I will make a statement, I'm not looking for a back and forth here. OK, I heard what you had to say. I'm telling you, that it is more beneficial to have a police officer who's familiar with being a police officer, become the wellness officer, receive the proper training, and improve his craft that way. As well as having a psychiatrist and clinician on board, which is what is there. Over with back and forth. We're not even going to vote on that so I don't know why we're still going. Chairman Guessferd: The wellness officer from my perspective is, I think it was said, it's an entry point. It's not somebody with a master's degree in counselling or ... Selectman Roy: But they should have something. Chairman Guessferd: Well I think that's what they're saying. Selectman Dumont: How many psychiatrists have applied to be a police officer? Officer Downey: Selectman Roy, what are you expecting or what do you want from training? I'll tell you whether I have it or not. Selectman Roy: OK. What kind of degree do you have? What college degree do you have? Officer Downey: I have a college degree. I have a bachelors in criminal justice and a minor in psychology. Selectman Roy: OK. How many training sessions have you gone to and how long are they? Officer Downey: One, I'm trained by ICIS, which is international for peer support and group... Selectman Roy: What does ICS stand for? I'm sorry. Officer Downey: International Critical Incident Stress Management. They are internationally known all over the world. So they're an organization that trains us. So that is a three day process. On top of that I've gone to I can't even keep track. I have probably had almost a 100 hours of, over the in the last 12 years. I got that 12 years ago. So I've been doing this all behind the scenes. What first responders don't like is change in the way things are. We're afraid of change and we don't like it. Ultimately what I am, I am a triage person. OK, I triage, I am trained to identify what problems other people are struggling with that maybe they don't understand. Then I have, and I vet, and I meet with groups and I'm part of a regional team. I'm a team leader and that we go around and we meet once a month. We do different trainings, I actually train other people. I go to Camp Resilience. I am working with clinician's day in and day out. I'm learning training so I have over 100 hours of training between clinicians and everything else. I will tell you that the clinicians actually asked me to do trainings. I'm actually speaking at a conference on wellness. I am one of the guest speakers based on how I'm respected around the whole southern New Hampshire region. So, a lot of people say I'm a diamond in the rough based on how much I know about mental wellness in regards to as a police department. Selectman Morin: I think he needs to continue. Officer Downey: So what we're trying to do is an officer is not going to speak to a clinician. I have to be that buffer. I have to lend a warm handoff to say listen, I know you're struggling, I can see it. You might want to talk to this person. I have spoken to this person I have vetted this person. I'm the one that would probably get up a t 3 o'clock in the morning and drive them to a detox center or hospital if they needed to. Because that's what's going to happen instead of them harming themselves. I've lost several people. I don't ever want to experience that again. So that's why I care about this thing and that's why I'm here. I did not have to be here tonight. Not 100% I did not have to be here. But I care about this program so much that I'm here to defend it if I needed to. Selectman Roy: I disagree you didn't have to be here, you're the wellness officer and this conversation. Officer Downey: The Chief is presenting a potential item to have a clinician. It has nothing to do with right now, in the sense of a wellness position. I'm here to support the Chief and the program, that's why I am here. Chairman Guessferd: Officer Downey, so sounds to me, I think, there's a clear line of demarcation. Chief Dionne: We didn't invent any of this. This is our best practice. Chairman Guessferd: No, no, no. Give me a second to speak a few minutes, OK? Just speak a little bit. I think that there's a demarcation between what the wellness officer does and what a clinician would do. I don't think, let me know if I'm wrong here. Officer Downey, you're not performing counseling, per se. You're not doing, you're not going into that level where counseling masters would go. Is there a demarcation there? Officer Downey: Correct. I'm trained in peer support. I am trained in peer support. I can maybe diffuse and deescalate and I've done the 40 hour training, the (inaudible) for mental health and wellness for people for responding to mental illness people out in the public. I have a 40 hour class that I attended about 4 or 5 months ago, or actually almost a year ago now. So, that's one of those pieces, that's another training that is all about understanding what people are going through mentally. And that's just the wellness, not even counting the officers. I am here to kind of be a sounding board for information and I take that information. If it's over above my pay grade as they say, I then am calling the clinician and we're transporting somebody or bringing them to where they need to be. Chairman Guessferd: See that's where I'm kind of lying in my head here. This discussion could probably continue on for hours because it's an important topic. But, where you end and where somebody else begins. The clinician is a different, I'll say scope than the wellness officer. I'd be correct on that? Chief Dionne: Absolutely. Chairman Guessferd: There may be a tiny bit of overlap, but it sounds to me what I'm hearing is that there's two different jobs. The clinician would fill in the blank essentially for that kind of help that they need from a professional counselor. Officer Downey: But if I'm not vetting them or I'm not making other officers feel comfortable with that clinician being in the building and showing that it's not scary. That's my job to help the clinician. Chairman Guessferd: I get it. Selectman Morin: What he is, whether he's a police officer or not, with the fire department and the police department, he is the first contact. And we've seen that in the couple of years, Officer Downey was the first one that we contacted to get the process moving. And then he, with the two Chiefs, figures out where they need to go and he is the contact between the clinicians or the psychiatrist. So he's the first step in the process. Chairman Guessferd: OK, I get it. I get it. Selectman Roy: Just one more question. How much training have you done for all the employees? All the town employees? Chief Dionne: All the town employees? Selectman Roy: Yes. Chief Dionne: I know the town has sent everybody to Dr. Sawyer. That was a while ago. Selectman Jakoby: I just want to commend the process of peer to peer. Peer to peer is critically important in mental health no matter what level. I was trained as a peer person in one of my other professions and then moving on to the clinician. That first contact helps get that person to the next step. So I just commend that process and to have those resources is critical. Chairman Guessferd: And that's great because you understand that piece. Now, so here we are, we're having a discussion. What's the next step? Chief Tice: I would say for us, to wait and find out what happens with the grant. Because if we get the grant, it funds a lot of this for two years. On our side. Chairman Guessferd: And then you come back before us so we have another discussion? Correct? Chief Dionne: On our end it would be where would the funds be appropriated for it. Because it's would be probably somewhere between, on our end, depending on how many hours, \$10,000-\$15,000 for the year. For the retention. Selectman Roy: Chief, can I just ask a question? What grant? Chief Tice: The Assistance to Firefighters Grand. Selectman Roy: OK, I couldn't put the connection between what grant we were going to use. Chairman Guessferd: OK, we kind of beat this around a bit? Selectman Jakoby: Time frame for the grant? When might you hear? Chief Tice: We're hoping June/July timeframe. We know they've started reviewing them. Selectman Dumont: That last one, I know you already brought this up. I just wanted to ask do you think it's worthwhile to talk to the union prior to receiving that grant or do you think it's better to see if you get the grant first and then go from there. Chief Tice: No, I think this is something that the department can do. Selectman Morin: I don't think it's going to be an issue. Selectman Dumont: I don't think so either, you guys definitely know a lot more than me but, I just wanted to make sure there wasn't going to be road blocks for you, that's all. Selectman Morin: No, because the unions actually working with the Chief to put this together. Chief Dionne: I think it's important to let the Board know that in the event we need a clinician, we could still have a clinician. It's not like without ... Chairman Guessferd: Right, it's not all or nothing. Board agrees. Chief Dionne: And so for me it's more like are we looking at FY26? Chief Tice: With the unions, the peer support training. And that peer support program on the Fire side, is actually through the union, the International Association of Firefighters. And the International Association of Firefighters actually has an inpatient treatment center down in Maryland for mental health and substance abuse. They've recognized this as a major issue within the Fire service. Chairman Guessferd: OK, are we all set for now? The Board thanks Chief Tice and Chief Dionne.

# M. April 2024 Revenues & Expenditures

Chairman Guessferd recognized Town Administrator, Steve Malizia. Revenues and expenditures. We are 83% of the year complete. So basically, through the end of April. As I've stated the last few months the area of concern is legal and the next agenda item speaks to that. Other than that it looks like everything is pretty much where it should be. So we are rapidly coming up to the end of the fiscal year. We'll start to look at encumbrances, money we need to carry over for projects or expenditures that we're committed to but have not completed. Automobiles continue to very well, we're at 94%. We're above \$243K ahead of where we were last year at the same time. The caveat during the budget crises we bumped up the budget for the automobiles in the interest because they are doing very well. So, that will be more recognized in the revenue for the next budget. The interest, we basically are at almost 3X the amount of interest now that we were for the whole last year. Interest, again as I've stated before, interest rates are bad for consumers but they're great for investors. With the amount of money that we flow here we've done very, very well. And that definitely flows to the bottom line and it either gives us opportunities for tax relief or maybe a project or two. Things are looking pretty good. And again, the next item is legal because I have a proposed transfer because we're going to come up short on legal. Chairman Guessferd asked if anyone had any questions.

### N. FY 2024 Legal Budget

Chairman Guessferd recognized Town Administrator, Steve Malizia. So as I stated before looking at the legal budget we're going to most likely overrun it partially because the Budget Committee cut almost \$15,000 off the budget last year. Which is basically the same budget we've had for the last several years. And we did two major contracts this year that took more resources than we had budgeted. I'm recommending we transfer about

\$25,000 to give us the cushion to get to the end of the year. In other news, I think I told you all we did receive a verdict to get some of the money back from the Caldwell Road matter and actually collected that money yesterday. Chairman Guessferd: \$3,500? Steve Malizia: About that, 34 and change. We received a check yesterday for that. That matter is closed, we got the money. That will go towards this budget, but \$25,000 just to be on the safe side. Again, we're not still negotiating any contracts but, we get the end of the year legal bills. I have a couple of places to take it, one will be the Town Poor which we've managed very well. We've got the extra there and some from the Selectman's contingency which again, sort of the reason you have contingency. Selectman Roy: I was just ready to make a motion. Selectman Roy made a motion, seconded by Selectman Morin to transfer \$15,000 from the Town Poor account 5151-258 and \$10,000 from the Selectmen's Contingency Account #5940-298 to Legal Fees #5200-218 to cover Legal expenses for the remainder of the fiscal year. Motion carried 5-0.

### 9. Selectman Liaison Reports/Other Remarks

Selectman Morin: Last night the Conservation Commission stepped up and took \$100,000 out of their conservation budget for the engineering and permits for the Robinson Pond project which is to redo the beach, the boat ramp, things to that nature. This project would also go to the requirements of our MS-4 permits that the federal government are requiring with the water ways. They will also be looking into grants and applying for any that they find to help us with the construction costs. That's a huge start right there. That's all I have tonight. Oh actually, I just want to reiterate what we talked about earlier with the Town Engineer referenced to traffic. When the bridge starts we've all seen what a car accident can do, this is going to double that. People need to add time to their commute and figure out what they're going to do because it's going to be bad for quite a while. Chairman Guessferd: And it's unavoidable, it needs to be done. Last thing we need is a bridge in the river. Steve Malizia: I believe the message boards will be deployed probably starting next week. There will be a big sign message board. So people who don't read our web page will be able to look at this. They'll see the big sign when they're driving. Hopefully they're paying attention.

Selectman Roy: I have nothing for liaison reports other than I had my first Benson Committee meeting this coming Thursday so I'm kind of looking forward to that. The other thing is a request. Can we put on the next agenda hiring the Town Planner? And specifically looking at a head hunter. Chairman Guessferd: Uh, yes except for the fact that by the time we meet next we will have interviewed a candidate. We finally have a viable candidate for an interview on the 24<sup>th</sup>. So Selectman Dumont and I will be involved in that. And if that doesn't come through, we'll have to come back. Then my other question is did you send out a bunch of responses to the Executive Assistant position? Steve Malizia: I sent it to you two because you're on the committee. Selectman Roy: Do we want to schedule? Start scheduling? Steve Malizia: I need to you respond back to me and let me know who you want to speak to. Selectman Roy: Oh, OK. I did not. Chairman Guessferd: Yes, there's a spread sheet that says yes or no. Steve Malizia: Don't feel bad, I just got his. Selectman Roy: I saw all the applicants because there were quite a few of them. Steve Malizia: There are and you can mark off what you want and then typically if we concur (inaudible). So if you can bring me that in the next day or two we can start the process. Shouldn't be that hard. Selectman Roy: OK, thank you.

<u>Selectman Dumont</u>: It was a slow couple weeks for me I didn't have any liaison meetings. I've got more coming up. I have zoning coming up and library for my first week that will be very interesting to meet the group over there. I hear a lot of good things. But other than that, everybody pay attention to traffic. Warm weather more motorcycles are out. Pay attention.

<u>Selectman Jakoby</u>: I just wanted to update that I am working on getting up to speed with the Budget Committee and the School Board. Unfortunately I was out of town for my first meetings so, I will continue to do that. Also, I just want to thank Lorrie Weissgarber who gave me a tour of the Town Hall and all the ins and outs and backrooms and I got to meet a lot of the staff. So thank you to the staff for being so welcoming to me and just wanted to learn more about the building itself. So thank you.

Selectman Guessferd: From my perspective we have a Planning Board meeting tomorrow night. We were going to be discussing the Central Gas plan application, that's going to be moved another two weeks. They requested an extension to the next meeting so I believe we'll probably approve that and send that on. There's a couple other items there but we're working through all that. Sustainability, we had a meeting on Monday and you're seeing some of the things tonight so I won't really need to talk too much more about Sustainability at this point. They did, I think we might have already discussed it, they did have their clean up and it was very successful. I think we talked about that before. So, it's this kind of volunteer program that Town's people come out for, get involved, volunteer it's a onetime thing, it's usually once a year. So keep your eyes peeled for that. It's a very big help and Musquash Road looks much better than it has in months. With regard to Recreational. Recreation Department, there are 325 registered right now for the summer program. So that's excellent and it can still be done. If you need to sign up your children, sign them up. Father/Daughter Dance is this weekend. There's two nights. It's so popular they have two nights, it's Friday and Saturday. Friday is sold out but the Rec does have limited tickets available for Saturday. Go to the web site or call or email Chrissy Peterson if you're interested in attending. Adult softball season has started. It's one of the big Rec adult things they do during the year, that and basketball. The first game started last night. They're usually a Jetty/Sousa Field, men's and women's. So come out and see a game they're every night of the week typically Monday through Thursday. A couple different games come on out and cheer on the teams. Tennis, we're again offering a tennis session in July for both youth and adults, registration opened last night. If you're interested in the tennis I think it kind of fills up pretty quick from what I remember from last year. So there are limited spots available on the Rec side. The only other thing I want to say is our next meeting will be after Memorial Day. So what I want to ask people is come on out for the parade on Memorial Day. It's in the afternoon I think it kicks off usually around 1:30pm. There's a step off with a ceremony in Library Park halfway through. Alvirne High School Band will be there, the American Legion band will be playing. There will be nice words said about what Memorial Day means to all of us celebrating, I wouldn't say celebrating, remembering those who have made the ultimate sacrifice for our country. Very important day, love to see people come for it. We want everybody to be safe that weekend as well because it's a long weekend and usually it's the unofficial kickoff of summer. So, be safe out there, be smart and again why we get the extra day off from work. It's because of those folks who sacrificed for us. So, that's all I have. Town Administrator.

- 10. Remarks by Town Administrator: Just a couple of public service announcements. Assessing wanted me to let everybody know tax forms for the State of New Hampshire Low and Moderate Income Home Owners Property Tax Relief Program are now available at the State of New Hampshire web site. This program is wholly administered by the State of New Hampshire only. So basically the application deadline is May 1<sup>st</sup> through June 30<sup>th</sup> www.revenue.nh.gov there's also a link on the front of our web page for the low or moderate income home owners. Also another reminder, dog licenses, they were due by April 30<sup>th</sup>, you have until May 30<sup>th</sup> before the fines and levies start kicking in and believe me, they're pretty stiff. They're a lot more money than actually registering your dog. So, I just encourage everybody with a dog, register their dog. I'm just reading the notice. I think it's \$6.50 for neutered/spayed and a \$25 fine. And Jana and they just have to go after and chase all kinds of people. Just a public service announcement.
- School Board Liaison Grace Kennedy: Thank you. Today we had a retreat. Our recruit was three hours long we talked about a lot of different things. But what I wanted to go over is what we had at our last Board meeting, the superintendent report. At our last Board meeting we had people speaking about Hudson girls' softball, using the fields and talking about some fixes they'd like to see for the center fields. There was a DECA conference in California, 25,000 students across the country and 12 were from Alvirne. They've gotten mostly by the state for a small robot they brought it with them. And 20 to the middle school, 20 to the high school, they're being paid by the state. The state is being \$119, I guess there's only \$60 and the state is paying for those. There's a lot of students to learn about open sourcing, coding, different things using a 3D printers to make wheels, other things. They're going to allow these robots to be used for professional development and for engineering one classes. So if you know anybody who'd like to learn about these little robots you need to contact Alvirne High School. There is a National Skills Conference, 6 students placed at the state level. The superintendent always gives us a two page report that's very detailed. Before April vacation 48 local businesses were at the Alvirne Third Annual Career and Apprenticeship Expo at the Palmer Center. One of the students, Joey Alison, did a senior capstone project with the Barn Yard Café. That included developing a menu, seating reservations, focusing on all the aspects of the culinary industry. It was a fundraiser to support the food pantry. Emergency management (inaudible) April break all schools

competed in emergency management drills with observation and feedback from the Police Department and the Fire Department. Before vacation walkie-talkie training was facilitated by Belltronics. A company that works with the district on their radios. (inaudible) The district continues to complete a significant amount of hiring for the next school year. The majority of the hiring is focused on Alvirne High School and Hudson Memorial School. They'll be a memo in early June about any new hires. Other updates, celebrate Educator Appreciation Week as schools and nurses week. Our chef, the chef at the high school, David Wrestler, was recognized as chef of the year for professional chefs of the New Hampshire Chapter of the American Culinary Federation. Wow. One of our students at Alvirne, Shawn Boudreau, was recently named Nashua Telegraph Wrestler of the Year. And Frank Ginginis was also named the Nashua Telegraph girls basketball coach of the rear. And Dave Thiebeault who was named boys hockey coach of the year. Kudos to all of the athletes named winter All Stars by the Nashua Telegraph. Last weekend Hudson Memorial School champion bicyclist, Chris Poulis visited to present his bicycle stunts. He also talked to the students about promoting kindness, core values and elimination of negative behavior. At Hills Garrison Elementary completed its transformation of its courtyard area and they got contributions from Game Creek Video, HGES Faculty staff, Countrybrook Farms and Brox Industries. Hills Garrison also completed their donation of their eclipse glasses that were used recently for the solar eclipse. They dropped two full boxes of glasses to Netfield Eye last week. Finally, on April 17th the superintendent attended a Legislative Funding Committee hearing in Concord to discuss SB396 for the CTE kitchen renovation in Alvirne. I'm having a lot of fun being on the School Board I'm just finding out it's a lot more work than ever thought. But, they're wonderful people and they're so knowledgeable and I'm finding that about the Selectmen also. You guys are so knowledgeable than 20 years ago when I went to Selectmen meetings. You guys are doing much better. Chairman thanks the Grace Kennedy for the update.

## 12. Nonpublic Session

Motion by Selectman Roy at 9:47 p.m., seconded by Selectman Morin to go into non-public session under 91-A:2 I. (a) Strategy or negotiations with respect to collective bargaining;

RSA 91-A:3 II (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee or the disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her, unless the employee affected (1) has a right to a meeting and (2) requests that the meeting be open, in which case the request shall be granted. (b) The hiring of any person as a public employee. A roll call vote was taken. Motion carried 5-0.

Nonpublic Session was entered at 9:47 p.m. thus ending the televised portion of the meeting. Any votes taken upon entering open session will be listed on the Board's next agenda. The public was asked to leave the room.

The Board entered into public session at 10:42 p.m.

# Motions made after nonpublic session:

- 1. Selectman Dumont made a motion, seconded by Selectman Morin to hire Caleb Lambert as a Part-Time Provisional Call Firefighter, an unpaid position with no benefits as recommended by the Fire Chief. Motion carried 5-0.
- Selectman Dumont made a motion, seconded by Selectman Roy to authorize the Fire Chief to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding on behalf of the Town of Hudson with the Professional Firefighters of Hudson IAFF Local 3154 whereas, Firefighter Cole Lodi will remain on probationary status until either he satisfies Hudson fire Department training and certification requirements and obtains his AEMT or January 27, 2025, whichever comes sooner as recommended by the Fire Chief. Motion carried 5-0.
- 3. Selectman Roy made a motion, seconded by Selectman Dumont to hire Alyssa Anderson for the position of dispatcher in the Fire Department at the contracted salary of \$19.36 per hour step 1. This assignment will be a non-exempt position in accordance with the International Association of Firefighters Local #3154 as recommended by the Fire Chief. Motion carried 5-0.

- 4. Selectman Dumont made a motion, seconded by Selectman Jakoby, to authorize the Fire Department to enter into Probationary Firefighter Training Costs Reimbursement Agreement. Motion carried 5-0.
- 5. Selectman Dumont made a motion, seconded by Selectman Morin to accept the Town Administrator's notice to retire effective August 30, 2024. Carried 5-0.
- 6. Selectman Dumont made a motion, seconded by Selectman Jakoby to hire Municipal Resources, Inc. (MRI) to conduct a Town Administrator recruitment search for the Town of Hudson for the not to exceed amount of \$7,000. Carried 5-0. By Consensus: Suspend the Assistant Town Administrator hiring process until such time as a successor Town Administrator has been appointed. Several applicants may be viable candidates for the Town Administrator position.

1	3.	Λ	D	П	$\cap$		ID	١	ı.	٨	Λ	F	٨	П	Г
т.	J	н	v.	J'	u	u	חו	ч	v	I١	/1	Е.	I١		

Kara Roy, Selectman

13. ADJOURNMENT	
Motion to adjourn at 10:45 p.m. by Selectman	Roy, seconded by Selectman Morin. Carried 5-0.
Recorded by HCTV and transcribed by Lorrie W	eissgarber, Administrative Aide.
Bob Guessferd, Chairman	Dillon Dumont, Vice-Chairman
Dave Morin, Selectman	Heidi Jakoby, Selectman